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Dear Customer and Stakeholders,

Being the chairman of the Board of Alpha Commercial Bank PLC.,
| am honored to present the Annual Report 2023 of Alpha
Commercial Bank, which reflects years of strategic growth,
resilience and unwavering commitment. Change for excellence
with great pride and high customer trust.

Despite the uncertainty caused by the global economic crisis,
Alpha Commercial Bank PLC. has shown remarkable resilience
and performance beyond expectations, as well as building greater
confidence in customers and our valued shareholders. Our prudent
risk management, along with our strategic investment in
technology, has strengthened our position as a strong bank in the
Cambodian market.

Throughout the year, we constantly seek innovation by embracing
digital transformation to enhance the new customer experience.
Alpha Commercial Bank PLC.'s relentless pursuit of excellence not
only strengthens its position in the market, but also strengthens
the bank's reputation as a reliable partner for business and
community.

Further, in 2023 we can achieve a positive increase in profits
compared to the profits in 2022, which clearly indicates the
constant support of customers.

In future, we remain committed to providing sustainable growth,
promoting financial integration and creating long-term value for all
stakeholders. Our journey forward is characterized by optimism,
innovation and unwavering commitment to serve the needs of all
our clients with professionalism and attention.

Once again, representing the Board of Alpha Commercial Bank, |
would like to thank our customers, shareholders and employees
for their support and especially thank the Royal Government of
Cambodia, National Bank of Cambodia, all ministries and
institutions that have provided supports and assistances to our
bank until achieving excellent results in 2023. We are committed
to continuing to promote the financial landscape with resilience,
agility and relentless pursuit of excellence.

Thank you for your trust and confidence in Alpha Commercial Bank
PLC.

Thank you.

Neak Oknha Ly Kunthai

Chairman
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OUR STORY | &, 41 # ¢k %

Received banking

Jun 2019 operations license
Alpha Bank was from the NBC.
established.
[ |
|
RGRITH
2013.06 AR LR,
R AL
BUER L
$RIT [ I
|

Sep 2021

launched opening
ceremony.

2021.09
BEIEAL

May 2022

Received
certificate of tax
compliance —
Gold.

2022.05

RS SR
Bigs ARIES

Aug 2023

Launched ATM
and Mobile App
Phase 1.

2023.08

HH ATM FFAL
RITE M




Alpha Commercial Bank PLC | Annual Report Year 2023 £ F | BREFIRT
OUR KEY FIGURES | #,41 #) # 4% #4 1%
UM 2021 2022 2023‘
Financial Position | IA 551K 5%
Total assets | B&E = US$ 129,649,663 158,710,827 205,288,831
Loans to customers, net | & A5 50%E US$ 6,141,032 21,592,566 27,795,985
Total liabilities | S faf& US$ 29,605,172 56,915,606 98,769,112
Deposits from customers | 2 FA722% US$ 28,180,381 55,336,168 96,701,692
Total equity | BRAFRANE US$ 100,044,491 101,795,221 106,519,719
Share capital | SEYE 7 Us$ 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000
Financial performance | 5\l 4%
Interest income | F B UL A US$ 3,162,016 5,269,909 9,455,811
Profit before tax | Fi By F5E US$ 654,917 2,242,520 6,000,674
Income tax expense |FT 552 F USs$ (186,709) (491,790) (1,276,176)
Profit after tax | 7415 USs$ 468,208 1,750,730 4,724,498
Financial ratios | 455 EER
Profitability | ZFI&E
Return on Assets | 5 F=3R Bl R * % 0.36% 1.10% 2.30%
Return on Equity | B RS TR BN ZR* % 0.47% 1.72% 4.44%
Gross Profit Margin | FEF)Z % 97.60% 97.09% 97.31%
Net Profit Margin | 74 F 2 % 14.81% 33.22% 49.96%
Assets quality | Z2F= =
NPL Ratio (Stage-3 LEJan / Grossi Loan) % 10.73%
NPL X (E=MEBHER/ &P RRBH)
Loan’s overall ECL rate (ECL for Gross Loan / Gross Loan) % 0.09% 0.24% 0779%
RAWEBECLE (RARECL/EF TR RE)
Capital management and liquidity | ZAEBREIHE S
Net worth | & Z< %% US$ 100,133,087 101,494,862 105,773,254
Solvency ratio | £2{5T8E /1 L2 % 89.31% 80.45% 72.75%
Liquidity coverage ratio | JREIE B & R % 193% 140.48% 149.97%
Loans to deposits ratio | ¥ 72 LR % 22.08% 39.52% 29.32%
Gearing Ratio (Debt / Equity) | £ ik Eb & ($a fik /A &%) % 29.59% 55.91% 92.72%
Note iF :
ATM: Automated Teller Machine BE#22k4l  NPL: Non-Performing Loan 381 8A A=K
CRM: Cash Recycler Machine Td & 72/325x41  UM: Unit of Measurement 3+& {1
ECL: Expected Credit Loss FRHER{= R 5< * Total assets and equity represent the year-end balance. R & MR ANEREREREE
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Total assets

BB

Total Liabilities

SVt

Equity
BRI

All figures are expressed in million USD

FERFHUERETRTR

Loans to customer, net
BEFGER BE

Deposits from customer
BEFRHEX

Interest income
FRIA

Net profit
¥

Net worth
BEZ2E
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OUR CONTRIBUTION | %, 41 # 4+ 4 2\ 4.

On 2 and 3 December 2023, Alpha Commercial Bank volunteered with
Cambodia Care & Development Fund Association (CCDFA) and World
Rotary to assist Volunteer doctors from Taiwan, Korea, Japan, and
Singapore in does treatment of patients in Sandek commune, Batheay
district, Kampong Cham province.

Certificate of Appreciation dated 30 November 2023.

2023 £ 12 B 2 HZ 3 H, BEABVRITERBEXEZEELARESHS
MR, EkBEAE. BE. BAMFIMENSEEE R
BHEEAXRER AHMNEERHENZ.

RRIEPIR 2023 £ 11 B 30 Ho
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Donation to Cambodian Red Cross for US$10,000.
Certificate of Appreciation dated 9 June 2023.

BRI+ F &850 10,000% 7T,
BIPIR 2023 £ 6 B 9 He
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AWARD AND RECOGNITION | 2&57 & <A <T

Certificate of Tax compliance No. 9725 dated 12 May 2022
issued by the General Department of Taxation:
Gold Award for 2 years from 2022 to 2023

BEEMIEBES 9725 F 2022 573 125

MESRMEL
RIG2022FF20235FWFER
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Deposit Product /4 # # &

Current Account

You can carry out your money
anywhere and anytime with safety
and convenient way by applying
Cheque Account at Alpha Bank
and using a cheque as your facility
to meet your daily financial needs
with a flexible way to manage your
money.

Savings account

You can carry out your money
anywhere and anytime with safety
and convenient way by applying
Cheque Account at Alpha Bank
and using a cheque as your facility
to meet your daily financial needs
with a flexible way to manage your
money.

Fixed deposit account

Save your future by deposit your
money with Fixed Deposit at Alpha
Bank that offers you the
competitive Interest. You can save
and earn money at the same time.
We offer a higher interest rate
with flexible tenure which gives
you a fixed rate of interest until
maturity.

11

OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES | #,41 7 7~ & Fo & %~
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OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES | #,41 7 7~ & o A& %~
Credit Product 4 % # &
Business Term Loan B BRI HRRK

Whether you are planning to
expanding your business,
renovating or constructing a

business premise, investing on
equipment and machinery, looking
for a loan to fund a project, or
supporting your working capital,
we are really glad and cooperative
to discuss your requirements and
provide you with the amount of
loan for your business needs.

Business Revolving Loan

Business Revolving Loan is such a
convenient loan facility with the
available credit line up to 12
months. This loan purpose is to
support business working capital
in a short run, and it provides the
borrower with the ability to
drawdown, repay, and withdraw
again within the loan period. This
Revolving Loan is considered as a
flexible financing tool due to its
repayment and  re-borrowing
accommodations.

Home Loan

To purchase, enhance or upgrade
your living accommodation, apply
with us to make your dream house
come true and enjoy a new living
standard.

12
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Our bonus points for life | £,41 € 4 & .4

Khmer New Year | 5RHTF

13
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Staff Party | RT R <
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Chinese New Year | &1

15
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Annual staff retreat | & THz4T

16
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Football team | B3z EEKBA
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VISION, MISSION, AND VALUE | & & . &% . Ao M-{A 7L

The Bank's vision is to become a high-quality international
bank.

B lA— R EFFRE L RIT.

We are freshly and professionalism. We aim to provide a
good service with high technological banking to our
customers.

e FAVAFRL BT LT WRIIRIT, A REPRHEMN
PSR &R S

The Bank's value is Bonus Point for Life.

MEW: RITHNERZHEEMS .

18
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ORGANISATIONAL CHART | 48 4% 22 %4

As of 31 December 2023 | #;E2023F12831H

' ™
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|
Board of Directors

EEE=ES
( Board Secretariat
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. . . Board Credit Commitiee Audit Committee
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________________________ CEO S
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS | & % 4

As of 31 December 2023 | #;=2023F12H31H

1. Neak Oknha Ly Kunthai Cambodian Chairman
THRNE ESEPN EEK

2. Mr. Lin Wen Cheng Taiwanese Vice chairman
ML aBaEA BEEK

3. Mr. Chang Ching Tsung Taiwanese Director
SKERERSEAE aEA EE

4, Mr. Chen Chih Che Taiwanese Independent director
BRSEELE aEA MY ES

5. Mrs. Chhim Sopheap Cambodian Independent director
AT+ FIHEA MY ES

20
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MANAGEMENT TEAM | & 32 2

As of 31 December 2023 | #;=2023F12H31H

1. Mr. Cheng Kuang Min Taiwanese Chief Executive Officer
IR et aBaEA Bl

2. Mr. You Sokleng Cambodian Head of Finance
ERETE ESEPN WeEEE

3. Mr. Sok Keo Cambodian Acting Deputy Head of Credit
RERE RIFEA REHERETBTE

4, Mr. Heng Bunnang Cambodian Deputy Head of Credit Management
A s ES5E-PN RREERETE

5. Mrs. Sok Muy Cambodian Acting Deputy Head of Operations
MEELL FIHEA REELFEEE

6. Ms. Chheang Sophy Cambodian Administrative Manager
BEFEEXL ES5EPN TBREE

7. Mrs. Pheng Raksmey Cambodian Human Resource Manager
FEAXL TIHEA AEHEE

8. Mr. Chrek Sineth Cambodian Head of IT
AL TIHEA BB EE

9. Mr. Chem Samthearith Cambodian Deputy Head of Compliance
BRIZ k& TIHEA AMMEIEE

10.  Mr. Yath Sovann Cambodian Head of Internal Audit
AR S ES5EPN NEEIEEE

21
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INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT | A 3f 4% 4| 48 &

INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to Prakas No. B-7-010-172 on Internal Control of Bank
and Financial Institutions issued by the National Bank of Cambodia
on 28 September 2010, the Bank has established organized and
effective internal control system.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is at center of operating structure of the Bank,
and it is everyone's responsibility. The Bank has set up that
supervises overall risk management which exercise independently
from the day-to-day business of the Bank. In-Charge of Risk
Management is responsible for risk management function of the
Bank and to provides an oversight of the management of risk
inherent in the Bank's activities by identity current and emerging
risks, develop risk assessment and measurement system, develop
risk tolerance limits, establish policies, procedures and other
control mechanism to manage risks, monitor positions against
approved risk tolerance limits and report results of risk monitoring
to risk management and compliance committee and the Board on
a regularly basis.

COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT

Compliance management is aiming for managing all type of
compliance risks to ensure the soundness of internal control
system. Compliance function is to ensure policies and procedures
are implemented in the Bank to manage compliance risk, provide
regulatory compliance advisory and consultation to senior
management, responsible for AML/CFT matter and provide
training to all staff. Head of Compliance is designed as Compliance
Officer and reports to risk management and compliance
committee and the Board on a regularly basis.

22
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INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit provides the professional and independent review
on operation of the Bank by adding values through improving
efficiency and effectiveness of internal control system, risk
management, and compliance with applicable law and regulation.
Internal Audit reviews all operations of the Bank based on internal
audit plan, risked-based approach, and internal audit procedure to
identify gaps in the business processes and provide
recommendation for improvement. Head of Internal Audit reports
to audit committee and the Board on a regularly basis.

BUSINESS UNIT

All Business units are risk owners and responsible for internal
control application to comply with internal policies and procedures
and applicable law and regulation. The Bank has disseminated and
provided training to deliver awareness of related policies and
procedures to staff to facilitate the implementation. All policies and
procedures are reviewed and approved by level of authority. For
confidential and sensitive documents are to be kept in the safe
place and made available to parties involved, where necessary.

23
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS | & % 4 1% £

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) has pleasure in submitting
its report together with the audited financial statements of Alpha
Commercial Bank PLC. (“the Bank") for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Bank is principally engaged in all aspects of banking business
and the provision of related financial services in Cambodia.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of financial performance for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 33.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends were declared or paid during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2023, the registered, issued and paid up share
capital of the Bank was 100,000 shares at a par value of US$1,000
per share.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material movements in reserves and provisions
during the vyear other than those disclosed in the financial
statements.

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCE ON
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Before the financial statements were prepared, the Board took
reasonable steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation
to write off of financial assets that have no reasonable
expectations of recovering the contractual cash flows in their
entirety or a portion thereof and making of allowance for expected
credit losses on financial assets, and satisfied themselves that all
known financial assets that have no reasonable expectations of
recovering the contractual cash flows were written off and that
adequate allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets
have been made.

24
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At the date of this report and to the best of knowledge, the Board
is not aware of any circumstances which would render the amount
of the allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets in
the financial statements of the Bank inadequate to any material
extent.

ASSETS

Before the financial statements of the Bank were prepared, the
Board took reasonable steps to ascertain that management took
appropriate actions so that any assets, which were unlikely to be
realised in the ordinary course of business at their values as shown
in the accounting records of the Bank had been written down to
amounts which they might be expected to realise.

At the date of this report, the Board is not aware of any
circumstances, which would render the values attributable to the
assets in the financial statements of the Bank misleading.

VALUATION METHODS

At the date of this report, the Board is not aware of any
circumstances which have arisen which render adherence to the
existing method of valuation of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements of the Bank misleading or inappropriate.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES

At the date of this report, the Board is not aware of:

a) any charge on the assets of the Bank which has arisen since
the end of the year which secures the liabilities of any other
person; and

b) any contingent liability in respect of the Bank that has arisen
since the end of the year other than in the ordinary course of
its business operations.

At the date of this report, the Board is not aware that any
contingent or other liability of the Bank has become enforceable,
or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve
months after the end of the periods which, in the opinion of the
Board, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Bank to
meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this report, the Board is not aware of any
circumstances, not otherwise dealt with in this report or the
financial statements of the Bank, which would render any amount
stated in the financial statements misleading.
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ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE

The results of the operations of the Bank for the reporting year, in
the opinion of the Board, were not substantially affected by any
item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the year
and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of a
material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the results
of the operations of the Bank for the reporting year in which this
report is made.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

At the date of this report, to the best knowledge of the Board,
there have been no significant events occurring after reporting
date which would require adjustments or disclosures other than
those disclosed in the financial statements.

THE BOARD'S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for ascertaining that the financial
statements as set out on page 32 to 95 present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December
2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended. In preparing of these financial statements, the Board
is required to:

1) adopt appropriate accounting policies which are supported by
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates and then
apply them consistently;

2) comply with the disclosure requirements of Cambodian
International Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRSs”), or if
there have been any departures in the interests of fair
presentation, these have been appropriately disclosed,
explained and quantified in the financial statements;

3) maintain adequate accounting records and an effective system
of internal controls;

4) prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to assume that the Bank will continue
operations in the foreseeable future; and

5) effectively control and direct the Bank and involved in all
material decisions affecting the operations and performance
and ascertain that such have been properly reflected in the
financial statements.
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Management is responsible for ensuring that the above
requirements have been fulfilled and is also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Bank and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The Board confirms that the Bank has complied with the above
requirements in preparing the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I, on behalf of the Board, hereby approve the accompanying
financial statements which in our opinion, present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Bank as at 31
December 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with CIFRSs.

Signed in accordance with the resolution of the Board:

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
Date: 18 March 2024
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KPMG CAMBODIA LTD.

Address: 35th Floor, GIA Tower, Sopheak Mongkul Street, Diamond Island,
Sangkat Tonle Bassac, Khan Chomkarmon, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
+8b5 (17) 666 537 / +855 (81) 533 999 | kpmg.com.kh

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ez PR L

To the shareholders of Alpha Commercial Bank PLC.
ERER WARITHIRR R

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Alpha Commercial
Bank PLC. (“the Bank"), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising material
accounting policies and other explanatory information as set out
on pages 32 to 95 (hereafter referred to as the “financial
statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank as
at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Cambodian
International Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRSs”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Cambodian
International Standards on Auditing (“CISAs”). Our responsibilities

under those standards are further described in the Auditors’

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Cambodia, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Disclaimer: For the convenience of readers and for information purpose only, Alpha Commercial Bank PLC. unofficially
translated this annual report from English to Chinese. If any discrepancy between the English and Chinese, the English
version shall prevail.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Report of the Board of Directors on
pages 24 to 27, and the annual report, which is expected to be
made available to us after the date of auditors’ report. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed on the other information obtained
prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
CIFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Bank'’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with CISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve  collusion,  forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For KPMG Cambodia Ltd

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
18 March 2024
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Cash on hand

Deposits with the NBC
Deposits with other banks
Statutory deposits with the NBC
Loans to customers
Investment securities
Property and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets

Other assets

Deferred tax assets, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Deposits from customers

Other liabilities

Current income tax liabilities

Lease liabilities

Provision for off-balance sheet items
Total liabilities

EQUITY

Share capital

Retained earnings
Regulatory reserves
Currency translation reserves
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity
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Notes

Pk i3

10
"
12
13
14
15
16

27.3

17
27.2

18
19

20

21

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

uUSs$ KHR'm US$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)

4,141,288 16,917 1,007,938 4,150
28,954,354 118,279 7,204,887 29,663
112,431,199 459,281 101,740,623 418,866
18,400,734 75,167 14,199,174 58,458
27,795,985 113,547 21,592,566 88,897
10,393,250 42,456 10,395,881 42,800
935,358 3,821 700,742 2,885
534,414 2,183 839,794 3,457
1,258,726 5,142 746,363 3,073
293,489 1,199 123,454 508
150,034 613 159,405 656
205,288,831 838,605 158,710,827 653,413
96,701,692 395,026 55,336,168 227,819
303,837 1,242 164,065 676
1,168,655 4,774 522,896 2,153
589,958 2,410 891,889 3,672
4,970 20 588 2
98,769,112 403,472 56,915,606 234,322
100,000,000 400,000 100,000,000 400,000
5,905,942 24,259 1,188,343 4,868
613,777 2,501 606,878 2,473
- 8,373 - 11,750
106,519,719 435,133 101,795,221 419,091
205,288,831 838,605 158,710,827 653,413

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
1R . A Ao B A 45 A A

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Other income

Impairment losses on financial
instruments

Personnel expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Other operating expenses
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Bank

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Owners of the Bank

FIEHA
FIE 2
FEFBA

FEBLAERA
FEBERASIH
FEBERASHFBRA

HAtg A

EE TRERRERS

%A
HrIEFEsHZE A
HithEIREE A
BiRTFIE
mEHiEA
HFE

Htaz & s
BRITHER
ZaWEs

FFERET:
ANTRRZR

ZaWa )3 ET

ATRRAR

Notes

R

22
23

24

25

26

271

2023 2022
US$ KHR'm Us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)

9,455,811 38,863 5,269,909 21,538
(190,845) (784) (148,514) (607)
9,264,966 38,079 5,121,395 20,931
65,353 269 229 1
(49) - - -
65,304 269 229 1
12 - 4,606 19
(263,686) (1,084) (290,482) (1,187)
(1,656,790) (6,809) (1,505,054) (6,151)
(640,254) (2,631) (493,025) (2,015)
(768,878) (3,160) (595,149) (2,432)
6,000,674 24,664 2,242,520 9,166
(1,276,176) (5,245) (491,790) (2,010)
4,724,498 19,419 1,750,730 7,156
- (3,377) - 4,354
4,724,498 16,042 1,750,730 11,510
4,724,498 19,419 1,750,730 7,156
4,724,498 16,042 1,750,730 11,510

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BAEBE T A

Currency translation

Share capital Retained earnings Regulatory reserves reserves Total
ST g A REIEFINE ZERBER HEHRHARBAR &it
US$ KHR'm Us$ KHR'm US$ KHR'm Us$ KHR'm US$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3) (Note 3.3) (Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
At 1 January 2023 20231 AT H 100,000,000 400,000 1,188,343 4,868 606,878 2,473 11,750 101,795,221 419,091
Total comprehensive income e
Net profit for the year EF)HE - - 4,724,498 19,419 - - - 4,724,498 19,419
Other comprehensive income: Hfvima s
- currency translation differences - HETRITE 5 - - - _ _ R (3,377) - (3,377)
- - 4,724,498 19,419 - - (3,377) 4,724,498 16,042
Transactions recognised directly in BHEITANRENZS
equity
Transfer between regulatory BIEERBEES
reserves and retained earnings - - (6,899) (28) 6,899 28 - - -
At 31 December 2023 2023 12 A31 H 100,000,000 400,000 5,905,942 24,259 613,777 2,501 8,373 106,519,719 435,133
At 1 January 2022 202251 AT H 100,000,000 400,000 (592,254) (2,410) 636,745 2,595 7,396 100,044,491 407,581
Total comprehensive income saEE
Net profit for the year R - - 1,750,730 7,156 - - - 1,750,730 7,156
Other comprehensive income: Hihvgz5WE
- currency translation differences - ETITEET - - - - - - 4,354 - 4,354
- - 1,750,730 7,156 - - 4,354 1,750,730 11,610
Transactions recognised directly in BEEHARRENZS
equity
Transfer between regulatory reserves 2% E{RE RS
and retained earnings - - 29,867 122 (29,867) (122) - - -
At 31 December 2022 2022 1231 H 100,000,000 400,000 1,188,343 4,868 606,878 2,473 11,750 101,795,221 419,091

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Written-off of property and equipment

Impairment losses on financial instruments

Interest income
Interest expense

Changes in:

Reserve requirement deposits with the NBC

Loans to customers

Other assets

Deposits from customers

Other liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Interest received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Balances with other banks - original
maturity more than three months

Acquisition of property and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Acquisition of investment securities
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payment of lease liabilities
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Currency translation differences

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

;}r]u OJ!U %
2023 2022
Notes us$ KHR'm Us$ KHR'm
pE 23 (Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
ZEENFENALSRE
BiRTFE 6,000,674 24,664 2,242,520 9,166
EERE:
rIEFNPEE = 640,254 2,631 493,025 2,015
JESHE B R = 32 - 2,281 10
ST RERRERSK 263,686 1,084 290,482 1,187
FLEUA 22 (9,455,811) (38,863) (5,269,909) (21,538)
FMEZH 23 190,845 784 148,514 607
(2,360,320) (9,700) (2,093,087) (8,553)

TRIME:
SREBFERRIT (4,201,560) (17,268) (1,645,173) (6,724)
B R (6,417,190) (26,375)  (15,597,888) (63,749)
Hithgr= (170,035) (699) 36,655 150
BRER 41,354,995 169,969 27,150,684 110,965
Hithfafk 139,772 574 80,990 331
BEFNTENTS 28,345,662 116,501 7,932,181 32,420
Y B FLE 8,520,027 35,017 4,388,075 17,934
FFFE (180,316) (741) (143,411) (586)
XAFETERL 27.2 (621,046) (2,552) (216,314) (884)
BEENFENIERE SR 36,064,327 148,225 11,960,531 48,884
BEEN=ENTALTE
H#REL - REIHE

BE=1A (6,500,000) (26,715)  (10,000,000) (40,870)
T 3% & 7B B = (463,648) (1,906) (293,922) (1,2071)
T EF B = (618,237) (2,541) (305,453) (1,248)
T8 AL S - - (10,000,000) (40,870)
BEEIFENIERE SR (7,581,885) (31,162)  (20,599,375) (84,189)
BRENTENTLTE
ERHEERRNAS (301,931) (1,247) (278,781) (1,139)
BEREINEENIASREFHR (301,931) (1,241) (278,781) (1,139)
NERALTE

A/ (R R 28,180,511 115,822 (8,917,625) (36,444)
1B HOl& R

LSRR 15,457,772 63,640 24,375,397 99,306
RRTEER - (1,199) - 778
12831 HA& X

LSRR 30 43,638,283 178,263 15,457,772 63,640

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 418 & 0 2B

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Alpha Commercial Bank PLC. (“the Bank”) was incorporated in
Cambodia under the Registration No. 00043962 dated on 24 June
2019 issued by the Ministry of Commerce. The Bank subsequently
received a banking license No. C.B.52 dated 7 December 2023
(original license No. B-52 dated 23 March 2020) issued by the
National Bank of Cambodia (“the NBC").

The principal activity of the Bank is the provision of all aspects of
banking business and related financial services in the Kingdom of
Cambodia.

The registered office of the Bank is located at the Gateway
Building, Ground and 33rd Floor, Russian Federation Blvd (St. 110),
Sangkat Phsar Depou Ti3, Khan Toul Kork, Phnom Penh,
Cambodia.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRSs ")
which are based on all standards published by the International
Accounting Standard Board including other interpretations and
amendments that may occur in any circumstances to each
standard.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 18 March 2024.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with CIFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the accounting policies. Areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimations are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in Note 7.
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3. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

3.1. Functional and presentation currency

The national currency of Cambodia is the Khmer Riel (“KHR").
However, as the Bank transacts and maintains its accounting
record primarily in United States Dollars (“US$"), management
have determined the US$ to be the Bank's functional and
presentation currency as it reflects the economic substance of the
underlying events and circumstances of the Bank.

The financial statements are presented in US$, which is the Bank's
functional currency.

3.2. Foreign currency transactions

Transaction in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency of at the spot exchange rates at the date of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange
rate at the reporting date. The foreign currency gain or loss on
monetary items is the difference between the amortised cost in
the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for
effective interest and payment during the year, and the amortised
cost in the foreign currency translated at the spot exchange rate
at the end of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at
the spot exchange rate at the date on which the fair value is
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

3.3. Presentation in Khmer Riel

The financial statements are expressed in United States Dollars
("US$") which is the Bank's functional currency. The translation of
US$ amounts into Khmer Riel (“KHR"”) meets the presentation
requirements pursuant to Law on Accounting and Auditing and has
been done in compliance with CIAS21 — the Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rate.
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Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate as at the
reporting date and share capital and other equity accounts are
translated at the historical rate. The statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and cash flows are translated into
KHR at the average rate for the year, which has been deemed to
approximate the exchange rate on the date of transactions as
exchange rates did not fluctuate significantly during the year.
Exchange differences arising from the translation are recognised
s “Currency Translation Differences” in other comprehensive
income.

rERFNEERE, SMHERMHERERARS R
Rk BEMEPC RN E . DUSMNHIHA, 2K R0L
KAMETEBHEENIT ARMES KI5

mHIES, HANHITREEZMO BN BERRKA
TRIF=EMNTEZMMIZFIESNEMIKE S
BERM=ENTHEZR. BTHRERRAETR>
AMFRZGITATER, BTREMKES®M
TEIFEMFEEZIITA ‘HftRalkm” -
B Em iR~ R A E A nrE =80t
AFEFR.

The Bank uses the following exchange rates: RITFERUTCE:
Closing Rate Average rate
HARCE IR
Year 2023 #: US$1 = KHR 4,085 KHR 4,110
Year 2022 #: US$1 = KHR 4,117 KHR 4,087

These convenience translations should not be construed as
representations that the US$ amounts have been, could have
been, or could in the future be, convert into KHR at this or any
other rate of exchange.

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest dollars (“US$”) or
million riels (“KHR'mM"), unless otherwise indicated.

4. CHANGES IN MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1. Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a
single transaction

The Bank has adopted Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to CIAS
12) from 1 January 2023. The amendments narrow the scope of
the initial recognition exemption to exclude transactions that give
rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences - e.g. leases. For
leases, the associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to
be recognised from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to retained earning or other component of equity at
that date. For all other transactions, the amendments apply to
transactions that occur after the beginning of the earliest period
presented.
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The Bank previously accounted for deferred tax on leases by
applying the "“integrally linked” approach, resulting in a similar
outcome as under the amendments, except that the deferred tax
asset or liability was recognised on a net basis. Following the
amendments, the Bank has recognised separate deferred tax
asset in relation to its lease liabilities and deferred tax liability in
relation to its right-of-use assets. However, there was no impact
on the statement of financial position because the balances qualify
for offset under paragraph 74 of CIAS 12. There was also no
impact on the opening retained earnings as at 1 January 2022 as a
result of the change.

4.2. Material accounting policy information

The Bank also adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(Amendments to CIAS 1 and CIFRS Practice Statement 2) from 1
January 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any
changes to the accounting policies themselves, it impacted the
accounting policy information disclosed in the financial
statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of “material”, rather than
“significant”, accounting policies. The amendments also provide
guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of
accounting policies, assisting the entities to provide useful, entity-
specific accounting policy information that users need to
understand other information in the financial statements.

Management reviewed the accounting policies and made update
to the information disclosed in Note 6 Material accounting policies
(2022: Summary of significant accounting policies) in certain
instances in line with the amendments.

5. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE

A number of new accounting standard and amendments to
accounting standard are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted,
however, the Bank has not early adopted any of the new or
amended standards in preparing these financial statements.
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Effective date New accounting standards or amendment FEN O ENETT
EH
1 January Classification of liabilities as current or non- AES L NRENEIAERS) (CIAS 1481T)
2024 current (Amendment to CIAS 1)
Non-current liabilities with covenants AESEARENHRIERE (CIAS 1 4&17)
(Amendment to CIAS 1)
Supplier finance arrangements (amendment to RN BB ZHE (CIAS 7 1 CIFRS 7 H91817)
CIAS 7 and CIFRS 7)
Lease liability in sale and leaseback (Amendment EEEfEHPEAERTE (CIFRS 16 &1T)
to CIFRS 16)
1 January Lack of exchangeabilities (Amendment to CIAS = H#ME (CIAS 21 1211)
2025 21)
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6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated.

6.1. Financial instruments
6.1.1. Recognition and initial measurement

The Bank initially recognises loans to customers on the date on
which they originated. All other financial instruments are
recognised when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair
value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. The fair value of a
financial instrument at initial recognition is generally its transaction
price.

6.1.2. Classification of financial assets

The Bank classifies financial assets, on initial recognition, as
measured at Amortised Cost (“AmrtC"), Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income ("FVOCI") or Fair Value through Profit or
Loss (“FVTPL") on the basis of both:

e the Bank's business model for managing the financial assets
and

e the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset.

The measurement classification is summarised as follows:
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W characterlsstlcs, cla\ss;flcatlon
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Held-to-collect: Financial asset is held to collect contractual cash Cash flows are solely AmrtC
flows. payments of principal and
R Zem B =2 AKEE B LR E A Bir. interest ("SPPI")
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HAthlk SR Br LR AEI. R SPPI

The financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition, except in the period when the Bank changed its
business model for managing financial asset.
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6.1.3. Classification of financial liabilities

The Bank classifies its financial liabilities, on initial recognition, as
measured at amortised cost, except for derivatives held for risk
management which are measured at FVTPL.

The Bank does not reclassify any financial liability.
6.1.4. Business model assessment

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business
model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this
best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

e the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the
operation of those policies in practice. In particular, whether
management’'s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration
of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash
flows through the sale of the assets;

e how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and
reported to the Bank’s management;

e the risks that affect the performance of the business model
(and the financial assets held within that business model) and
its strategy for how those risks are managed;

e how managers of the business are compensated (e.g.
whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and its expectations about future sales
activity. However, information about sales activity is not
considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment
of how the Bank’s stated objective for managing the financial
assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at
FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash
flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell
financial assets.
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6.1.5. SPPI Assessment

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the
fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is
defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during
a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the
Bank considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

In making the assessment, the Bank considers:

e contingent events that would change the amount and timing
of cash flows;

e leverage features;

e prepayment and extension terms;

e terms that limit the Bank's claim to cash flows from specified
assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and

e features that modify consideration of the time value of money
(e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).

Non-recourse loans

In some cases, loans made by the Bank that are secured by
collateral of the borrower limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows of
the underlying collateral (non-recourse loans). The Bank applies
judgment in assessing whether the non-recourse loans meet the
SPPI criterion. The Bank typically considers the following
information when making this judgement:

e whether the contractual arrangement specifically defines the
amounts and dates of the cash payments of the loan;

e the fair value of the collateral relative to the amount of the
secured financial asset;

e the ability and willingness of the borrower to make
contractual payments, notwithstanding a decline in the value
of collateral;

e whether the borrower is an individual or a substantive
operating entity or is a special-purpose entity;

e the Bank’s risk of loss on the asset relative to a full-recourse
loan;

e the extent to which the collateral represents all or a
substantial portion of the borrower’s assets; and

e whether the Bank will benefit from any upside from the
underlying assets.
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6.1.6. Derecognition

The Bank derecognise a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cashflow from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Bank neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to
the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any
new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in OCl is recognised in profit and loss.

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are cancelled or expired.

6.1.7. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

6.1.8. Fair value measurement

'Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measure date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at
that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance
risk.

When one is available, the Bank measures the fair value of an
instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that
instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the
asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses
valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen
valuation technigue incorporates all of the factors that market
participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.
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The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on
initial recognition is normally the transaction price — i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank
determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a
quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable
inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the
measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured
at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair
value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently,
that difference is recognised in profit and loss on an appropriate
basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the
valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the
transaction is closed out.

6.1.9. Impairment

The Bank recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses
("ECL") on the following financial instruments that are not
measured at FVTPL:

e financial assets that are debt instruments; and
® Joan commitments issued.

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The Bank assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition at each reporting date. Determining
whether an increase in credit risk is significant depends on the
characteristics of the financial instrument and the borrower, and
the geographical region.

The Bank considers the significant increase in credit risk base on
day past due ("DPD"). Days past due are determined by counting
the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect
of which full payment has not been received. Due dates are
determined without considering any grace period that might be
available to the borrower. Refer to Note 31.1.b, for the details.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in

credit risk relative to initial recognition, then the loss allowance on
an instrument returns to being measured as 12-month ECL.

Definition of default
The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default when:
e The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the

Bank in full, without recourse by the Bank to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or
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e The Bank considers that a significant increase in credit risk
occurs no later than when an asset is more than or equal to
30 days past due for long-term facilities or more than or equal
to 15 days past due for short-term facilities.

e Asset is considered as credit impaired when as asset is more
than or equal to 90 days past due for long-term facilities or
more than or equal to 31 days for short-term facilities.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are
measured as follows:

e financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting
date: as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Bank in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Bank expects to receive);

¢ financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date:
as the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows; and

e Trade facilities and undrawn loan commitments: as the
present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the Bank if the commitment is drawn
down and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive.

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating
impairment

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term
structure of the following variables:

e Probability of default (“"PD");
e Loss given default (“LGD"); and
e Exposure at default (“EAD").

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-
month PD by LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated by
multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.

The statistical model has been employed to analyse data collected
and generate estimate of remaining lifetime PD of exposure and
how these are expected to change as result of passage of time.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The
Bank estimates LGD parameters by benchmarking the value using
BASEL internal ratings-based framework (“IRBF”) parameter set
between 5% and 50% based on types of credit exposure.
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EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default.
The Bank derives the EAD from the current exposure to the
counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed
under the contract and arising from amortisation. The EAD of a
financial asset is its gross carrying amount at the time of default.
For trade facilities and undrawn loan commitments, the EADs are
potential future amounts that may be drawn under the contract,
which are estimated based on historical observations and forward-
looking forecasts. For some financial assets, EAD is determined
by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various
points in time using scenario and statistical techniques. the Bank
applied Credit Conversion Factor (“CCF") to estimate the EAD of
these off-balance sheet items.

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-
month PD for Stage 1 financial assets, the Bank measures ECL
considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual
period (including any borrower’s extension options) over which it
is exposed to credit risk, even if, for credit risk management
purposes, the Bank considers a longer period. The maximum
contractual period extends to the date at which the Bank has the
right to require repayment of an advance or terminate a loan
commitment or guarantee.

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an
existing financial asset is replaced with a new one due to financial
difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of
whether the financial asset should be derecognised and ECL are
measured as follows.

e |[f the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition
of the existing asset, then the expected cash flows arising
from the modified financial asset are included in calculating
the cash shortfalls from the existing asset.

e |f the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the
existing asset, then the expected fair value of the new asset
is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial
asset at the time of its derecognition. This amount is included
in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial
asset that are discounted from the expected date of
derecognition to the reporting date using the original effective
interest rate of the existing financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether financial
assets carried at amortised cost and debt financial assets carried
at FVOCI are credit-impaired (referred to as ‘Stage 3 financial
assets’). A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable data:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms
that the Bank would not consider otherwise;

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

¢ the disappearance of an active market for a security because
of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the
borrower’s condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired
unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual
cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other
indicators of impairment.

6.1.10. Presentation of allowance for ECL

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of
financial position as follows:

e financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction
from the gross carrying amount of the assets;

e |oan commitments: generally, as a provision.

6.1.11. Write-off

Loans are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the
Bank determines that the borrower does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off. This assessment is
carried out at the individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in
‘impairment losses on financial instruments’ in the statement of
profit and loss and OCI.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Bank’'s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

6.2. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, the non-
restricted deposits with NBC and with other banks with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.
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6.3. Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management.

Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property and
equipment that has already been recognised are added to the
carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future
economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of
performance of the existing asset will flow to the Bank. All other
subsequent expenditures are recognised as expenses in the year
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of assets less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives.

Construction in progress is not depreciated. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

6.3. B2 &=
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' 7 #IRKGE =R rate FEHr[EE
1 Office renovation DN B
2 IT and office equipment  FRFMIHNIEF Straight line
. . . . 5 years/ & 20%
3 | Furniture and fixture REMEEES B
4 Vehicles T A

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, if there is
an indication of a significant change since the last reporting date.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down to its recoverable
value immediately if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable value.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are included in profit or loss.

6.4. Lease — The Bank as a lessee

As inception of contract, the Bank assesses whether the contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Bank allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different term and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the lease assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on
a present value basis.

6.4.1. Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the lease
payments from fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Bank, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Bank uses its
recent borrowing rate as a starting point, making specific
adjustments to the lease such as term, country, currency and
security. Lease payments are allocated between principal and
interest expense. The interest expense is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

6.4.2. Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

* any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

* any initial direct costs, and

e restoration cost if any.
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Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life.

Subsequently the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

6.4.3. Recognition exemptions

Payments associated with short-term leases (a lease term of 12
months or less) and all leases of low-value assets are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss.

6.5. Intangible assets

Intangible assets, which comprise acquired computer software
licences and related cost, are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment loss. Acquired computer software is
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific
software and bring it to use.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the costs over their estimated useful lives of 10 years from
which the asset is ready for use.

Work in progress are not amortised.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs
are recognised as expense when incurred.

6.6. Impairment of non-financial assets

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or its related cash-generating unit (“CGU"”) exceed its
estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its
value in use and it fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be
tested individually are grouped together with the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

50

FRANA B RELEREFRAFRSHE
FHRREERITITH. WRATE féﬁﬁ%*A
T EIEFER, NFERNEFEEXE
RIfE A FRAZHITHTIR.

EANE R E ST B AR R T H
MREEERNIREIGI .

6.4.3. INFIEE%

5w E SR 12 MEEERE)
B RN ERHEEHE XN ERE P
INRER.

6.5. RIELHE ™

T E = BB E R T E R AT AT IEFIAE
BRAS, $RBVSRY B SERRA AN FNBR 21 HEEH AR

BEESEIEETR. WBHITENIRER

ﬁ%%ﬁ%%##ﬁﬁﬁAﬁﬁ%&immﬁ
BHATE AR

MIERAELEANE, BRADMERIXE
A RIS TRIHE A 105 IR

EE TR

SHPIT BN EF XA R LR
INKE.

6.6. FESREARE

WRFFHEMKI e SN ( “CCU” )
MK EESH AT AT E S5, MEIAR
Bifik.

AR A BT ESMERERNE
S5RaMERELERAZBNREE. T

EERMER, FTuRRIASREMER KRR

N EMEN SR T EARE R A LB
A ER PR RT IR = KA

ATHATEENK, JTTARIRPITNIXA
B SRS BT R A TSR B -
MW FEMEEH DS =ERLVNTMESRAR
RNEFHBEEE



Alpha Commercial Bank PLC | Annual Report Year 2023 £

Fik | BOEFHWIRTT

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGUs, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the
CGUs on a pro-rata basis.

Impairment losses recognised in prior years are assessed at each
reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

6.7. Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense from financial instruments at
amortised cost are recognised within “interest income” and
“interest expense” respectively in the statement of profit or loss
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout
the expected life of the financial instruments or, when appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Bank takes into account all contractual terms of the financial
instrument and includes any fees or incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses.

Interest income is calculated by applying effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for:

e Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets
("POCI"), for which the original credit-adjusted effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the financial
assets.

¢ Financial assets that are not "POCI” but have subsequently
become credit-impaired (or “stage 3”), for which interest
revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
their amortised cost (i.e. net of the expected credit loss
provision).

51

RESRTREPHIA. RIS F=ELNFIA
HRERAERPRUBRDDEENE 4 S
NAEMEENKEAE, REZLEFRDIR
AR EME K ERE.

FEEMRE B X AR B IARBEIR KT
W, ATHRIEEEMERKRBIRESHD
B FE. WRATHETREESHA T
REZ, WAERASFED. XERHK
A MBI HEARFINBERKANIE LT R
EMITRRIT IR MESE R MK E#ERY, BUERK
FREME.

6.7. T B AFIZ

HRBATBNEM T AR SWATIZER,
FITRASKFRRERE, 2R ERTDRE “FIE
WA 1 “FEEA" THIA.

SKERFIZGE, BREETESMEIERMAGRN
PERBA AR S AT S AR F B
TAZRITHEN G A SHRFME, ¥
A s & A AT F S E R TR R
RNERE, MUNZEMAFKERTHZE
RGP R B A BT A R 78 E SEFR A
KN, AMTEZREMBCHSMAGRAES
R FAMEM EATTHAERE, BFEE
TaHAE ARk

BN BB B R T S BA = H
T 4 S ERIH Y, B TSRS

* WEFORAEM S RAERERBERN SR 5™
( “POCI" ) , ZERMBEFMREREAR
RIS AR E R SERRF .

* RET “POCI BHEXREEMABE (3
‘“EIMKRT ) MEREF, HEFERA
R SEFR A RN A T H M RAA (BT
BRI AIRAIRE) KRitHE .



Alpha Commercial Bank PLC | Annual Report Year 2023 £

Fik | BOEFHWIRTT

6.8. Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position
when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as finance cost.

6.9. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is
recognised in profit and loss except items recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Bank has determined that interest and penalties related to
income taxes, including uncertain tax treatments, do not meet the
definition of income taxes, and therefore has accounted for them
under CIAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets and has recognised the related expenses in “other
expenses” in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on
the taxable income for the period using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be

applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences
that would follow the manner in which the Bank expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria
are met.

6.10. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid of the Bank has present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

6.11. Share capital

Share capital is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of ordinary share are recognised in equity
as a deduction, net of any tax effects, from the proceeds.

6.12. Regulatory reserve

Banks and financial institutions are required to compute regulatory
provisions, according to the NBC's:

e Prakas No. B7-017-344 dated 1 December 2017 on Credit
Risk Grading and Impairment Provisioning;

e (Circular No. B7-018-001 dated 16 February 2018 on
Implementation of Prakas on Credit Grading and Impairment
Provision; and

e Circular No. B7-021-002 dated 27 December 2021 on the
classification and provisioning requirements for restructured
loans

If the accumulated regulatory provision is higher than the
accumulated impairment based on CIFRS 9, the “topping up” will
be recorded as regulatory reserves presented under equity. The
reserve is subsequently reversed (up to zero) should the
accumulated regulatory provision equal or be lower than
accumulated impairment based on CIFRS 9. The regulatory
reserve is set aside as a buffer, is non-distributable, and is not
allowed to be included in the net worth calculation.
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7. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next period are addressed below.

7.1. Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following
notes.

e Note 6.1.2: Classification of financial asset: assessment of
the business model within which the assets are held and
assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial
asset are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

¢ Note 6.1.9: significant increase in credit risk: establishing the
criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition,
determining methodology for incorporating forward-looking
information into measurement of ECL and selection and
approval model used to measure ECL.

7.2. Assumption and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year is included in the following notes:

e Note 6.1.9: Impairment of financial instruments: determining
input into the ECL measurement model, including key
assumption used in estimating recoverable cash flows, and
incorporation of forward-looking information.

e Note 6.1.8: Determination of the fair value of financial
instruments with significant unobservable inputs.

e Note 27.4: Recognition and measurement of contingencies:
key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of
outflow of resource.
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8. CASH ON HAND | & # 34

By currency
US Dollar
Khmer Riel

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

US$ KHR'm uss$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
SR
EV 3,899,716 15,930 800,160 3,294
R 241,572 987 207,778 856
4,141,288 16,917 1,007,938 4,150

9. DEPOSITS WITH THE NBC | /& & # /T

Current account

%

The current account is a non-interest bearing account.

No impairment loss allowance is created against the balance
with the National Bank of Cambodia (“NBC") as the Bank
determines that the credit risk on these facilities is minimal.

10. DEPOSITS WITH OTHER BANKS | /3 34 @] 4k

Local bank

Current accounts

Savings accounts

Term deposits

Total principal amount
Accrued interest receivables
Gross amount

Less: ECL allowance

Net amount

AR

%%

E

et

PY-C

REH A&
[t

e TSR
e

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

us$ KHR'm us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
28,954,354 118,279 7,204,887 29,663
28,954,354 118,279 7,204,887 29,663
XHEELEMK,

AT RRITAE AR/, NERIVBEREK

=

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

The movements of the ECL allowance during the year were as follows:

T E AR RIER TSN T:

At 1 January

Recognised in profit or loss (Note 24)
Currency translation differences

At 31 December

1R1H
AR (F24)
BhiTHEM
12H31 H

55

uss$ KHR'm US$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
6,627,331 26,664 5,241,669 21,580
56,926 233 3,278 13
103,458,384 422,627 95,000,000 391,115
110,042,641 449,524 100,244,947 412,708
3,070,151 12,541 2,083,808 8,679
113,112,792 462,065 102,328,755 421,287
(681,593) (2,784) (588,132) (2,421)
112,431,199 459,281 101,740,623 418,866
2023 2022
US$ KHR'm US$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
588,132 2,421 471,604 1,921
93,461 384 116,528 476
- (21) - 24
681,593 2,784 588,132 2,421
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The total gross amounts above are analysed as follows:

VALK B ZR A F 7RI T :
31 December 2023

31 December 2022

uss$ KHR'm Us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
a. By currency a. BmmoH:
US Dollar ETT 109,775,465 448,432 99,683,341 410,396
Khmer Riel R 3,337,327 13,633 2,645,414 10,891
113,112,792 462,065 102,328,755 421,287
b. By maturity b. MK#E 54 :
Within 1 month 1M™A LA 8,729,737 35,661 7,245,648 29,830
> 1 to 3 months >1E3A8 19,892,313 81,260 12,418,080 51,125
> 3 to 6 months >3F6A 26,640,542 108,827 41,234,049 169,761
> 6 to 12 months >6E12 A 57,850,200 236,317 41,430,978 170,571
113,112,792 462,065 102,328,755 421,287
c. By interest rate (per annum) c. FIFESHT:
Current accounts Y5 0.00% to 3.00% 0.00% to 3.00%
Savings accounts EF 0.00% to 1.50% 0.00% to 1.00%
Term deposits EF 4.00% to 7.90% 3.20% to 7.50%

11. STATUTORY DEPOSITS WITH THE NBC | % £ /4 3 & /T

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

us$ KHR'm us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
Reserve requirement (a) FEENESS (a) 8,400,734 34,317 4,199,174 17,288
Capital guarantee (b) BARRIES (b) 10,000,000 40,850 10,000,000 41,170
18,400,734 75,167 14,199,174 58,458
(a) Reserve requirement (o) FEFEFES

On 9 January 2023, the NBC repealed the Prakas No. B7-020-230
on the Maintenance of Reserve Requirements against Banks and
Financial Institutions’ Deposits and Borrowings and issued new
Prakas No. B7-023-005, which requires Banking and Financial

2023FE1H9H, HiTHisE Ti1®< Prakas No. B7-020-230,
& HFROES Prokas No. B7-023-005, & GI#AERT
RARNNFURS B PR MARITE S AR B

AZ D
Institutions to maintain reserve requirement against deposits and e
borrowings at daily average balance with the NBC as follows:
« Forlocal currency (Khmer Riel): o 3tk ()
- Reserve requirement shall be maintained at 7%. - EEEEAESSRERET%.
e For foreign currencies (other than Khmer Riel): o SNHBESTR (RBRESN)

- From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023, reserve
requirement shall be maintained at 9%.

- From 1 January 2024 onwards, reserve requirement
shall be maintained at 12.5%.

On 23 November 2023, the NBC issued the letter No. B7-023-2621
allowing Banking and Financial Institutions to maintain reserve
requirement in foreign currency at 7% until 31 December 2024.

2621
SREFE %0
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2023%F11H23H, RITEHETES
AFRITMERMHME20245 12831 BRTEINOES

- 202315 1HE20235F 12831 B, 7k
HEEREFHE%.

- M2024F1RITHE, FOERSRRIFEI2.5%

Prakas No. B7-023-
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The reserve requirement on customers’ deposits and borrowings
bear no interest.

(b) Capital guarantee

In accordance with NBC's Prakas No. B7-01-136 dated 15 October
2001 on “Bank’s capital guarantee”, the Bank is required to
deposit 10% of the Bank's registered share capital with the NBC.
This deposit is not available for use in the Bank’'s day-to-day
operations and is refundable should the Bank voluntarily cease its
operations in Cambodia.

This deposit earned an interest rate at 1.29% (2022: 1.19%) per
annum.

12. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS | & 7 4 #

Term loans EHALERR

Accrued interest receivables MitFE

Deferred loan processing fee B IE LRI F 4R

Fair value adjustment of loan to staff  {EF|ZEH R TEEHIA M
at below-market rate RIS

Gross amount oSl

Less: ECL allowance B FRER{E iRk

Net amount KT $E

EREFRMERNEESTREFEM.

(b) BARIEE

HRIERITTF2001F108 150 %4 HiE@<4 Prakas No. B7-01-136
B “GRITRIEABR RARITRIUE RS A AR 10%
TFARIT. XEFRREATHITHHEELS, MEMITH
BELEAERBENLSE, TREXEER.

RERARIESHFFIRN.29% (20225 1.19%) .

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

The movement of ECL allowance on Loans to customers during the year were as follows:

TR IR RS ERTI RN T:

At 1 January 1H1H
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 24) T ARz (7E24)
Currency translation differences EhITEZEE
At 31 December 12 H31 H

57

us$ KHR'm us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
28,232,784 115,331 21,815,594 89,815
121,537 497 55,067 227
(176,824) (722) (182,450) (751)
(166,904) (682) (44,249) (182)
28,010,593 114,424 21,643,962 89,109
(214,608) (877) (51,396) (212)
27,795,985 113,647 21,592,566 88,897
2023 2022
us$ KHR'm uss$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
51,396 212 5,477 22
163,212 671 45,919 188
- (6) - 2
214,608 877 51,396 212
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The amounts of gross loans above are analysed as follows:

A EMKE S FI R T :

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Us$ KHR'm uss$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
a. By currency a. & a:
US Dollar ETT 24,476,539 99,987 18,108,642 74,554
Khmer Riel R 3,534,054 14,437 3,535,320 14,555
28,010,593 114,424 21,643,962 89,109
b. By maturity b. B4
Within 1 month I™BA 233,197 953 270,665 1,114
> 1 to 3 months >1&E3A 233,738 955 466,942 1,922
> 3 to 6 months >3E6H 414,552 1,693 779,726 3,210
> 6 to 12 months >6E12H 1,315,205 5,373 1,681,222 6,922
> 11to b years >1 E 5% 13,174,157 53,816 8,629,428 35,528
> 5 years > 54 12,639,744 51,634 9,815,979 40,413
28,010,593 114,424 21,643,962 89,109
c. By residency c. BRSO
Resident ER 28,010,593 114,424 21,643,962 89,109
28,010,593 114,424 21,643,962 89,109
d. By relationship d. XRB S
Non-related parties EXRA 27,696,523 113,141 21,419,169 88,184
Related parties KRA 314,070 1,283 224,793 925
28,010,593 114,424 21,643,962 89,109
e. By exposure e. K&
Non large exposures JERER 28,010,593 114,424 21,643,962 89,109
28,010,593 114,424 21,643,962 89,109
f. By security f. IR
Secured BIER 28,010,593 114,424 21,643,962 89,109
28,010,593 114,424 21,643,962 89,109
d. By performance g. RS LS T
Standard % 25,004,408 102,144 21,643,962 89,109
Special mention xF 3,006,185 12,280 - -
28,010,593 114,424 21,643,962 89,109
h. By industry h. {7l &%
Manufacturing il 716,074 2,925 2,482,344 10,220
Wholesale trade &l 1,876,169 7,664 1,861,156 7,663
Retail trade TEl 4,056,142 16,569 2,608,464 10,739
Hotel and Restaurant BERET 4,991,370 20,390 3,657,527 15,058
Real estate Bk 10,119,059 41,336 3,912,966 16,110
Construction EHA 4,798,873 19,603 5,277,993 21,729
Other Hith 1,452,906 5,937 1,843,512 7,590
28,010,593 114,424 21,643,962 89,109
i. By interest rate (per annum) i. FIEH7:
Term loan EHIGR 3.00% to 11.00% 5.00% to 11.00%
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13. INVESTMENT SECURITIES | 45 & <& 4

Investment in corporate bond NEES
Accrued interest receivables MitFE
Gross amount WK SR
Less: ECL allowance B FRER{E iRk
Net amount ope Sl

On 14 January 2022, the Bank entered into a
US$10,000,000 New Phnom Penh International Airport
Guarantee Bond Agreement with Cambodia Airport
Investment Co., Ltd. (the bond issuer) and Overseas
Cambodian Investment Corporation Ltd (the bond
guarantor).

The bond has a term of 3 years with maturity on 17 January
2025 and bears interest rate 5.50% per annum.

The movement of ECL allowance on investment in
corporate bond during the year were as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

uUs$ KHR'm US$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
10,000,000 40,850 10,000,000 41,170
524,384 2,142 524,384 2,159
10,524,384 42,992 10,524,384 43,329
(131,134) (536) (128,503) (529)
10,393,250 42,456 10,395,881 42,800

FATF202251 B1AH S RFEEVUFR BB RLF (i35
RIT N FRHRBINREBARAB (FFERA)ZET
10,000,000 £ThyH &8 E BB R G

TSR ASE, F2025FE1B17HEH, E£FXHN
5.50%.

HEIR KA ER LR ERSI R T

At 1 January 1ATH
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 24) 3T AREE (3F24)
Currency translation differences HEHITEZES
At 31 December 12831 H

2023 2022
uss$ KHR'm uss KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
128,503 529 - -
2,631 1 128,503 525
- (4) - 4
131,134 536 128,503 529
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14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT | & & ‘& #
Office Office IT Furniture and Vehicle Construction
Renovation equipment equipment fixture =t in progress Total
DRERE DRRE BREE REMEEERE IR EETE &it
uss uss Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3)
Year 2023 2023%
Cost R
At 1 January 1A1H 26,612 109,924 377,552 68,656 228,000 201,850 1,012,594 4,169
Addition #mn 3,361 1,090 9,295 - - 449,902 463,648 1,906
Transfer BHEM 3,960 - 647,792 - - (651,752) - -
Write off JEH - (130) - - - - (130) (1)
Currency translation differences RMITEZER - - - - - - - (44)
At 31 December 127331 H 33,933 110,884 1,034,639 68,656 228,000 - 1,476,112 6,030
Less: Accumulated depreciation H: &RitdrH
At 1 January 1BTH 1,673 34,082 102,726 25,171 148,200 - 311,852 1,284
Depreciation for the year iy =| 6,121 22,010 141,538 13,731 45,600 - 229,000 941
Write off JEH - (98) - - - - (98) -
Currency translation differences TEhITEE - - - - - - - (16)
At 31 December 12R/331 H 7,794 55,994 244,264 38,902 193,800 - 540,754 2,209
Carrying amount at 31 December ~ ¥{& 12 §31 H 26,139 54,890 790,375 29,754 34,200 - 935,358 3,821
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Office Office IT Furniture and Vehicle Construction
Renovation equipment equipment fixture et} in progress Total
DRAERE BhRE wHRE REMEEERE IR EETRE &t
Uss Uss Us$ uss$ uss$ Us$ Us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3)
Year 2022 2022
Cost B
At 1 January 1HTH 2,774 108,004 313,291 66,274 228,000 3,400 721,743 2,940
Addition H#n 2,000 1,920 20,978 2,382 - 266,642 293,922 1,201
Transfer R 21,838 - 46,354 - - (68,192) - -
Write off A5 - - (3,071) - - - (3,071) (13)
Currency translation differences BHiITEER - - - - - - - 41
At 31 December 12H31 H 26,612 109,924 377,552 68,656 228,000 201,850 1,012,594 4,169
Less: Accumulated depreciation R ®BitdrH
At 1 January 1A1H 324 12,298 37,093 11,772 102,600 - 164,087 668
Depreciation for the year 1A 1,349 21,784 66,423 13,399 45,600 - 148,555 607
Write off A5 - - (790) - - - (790) (3)
Currency translation differences TEHITEETm - - - - - - - 12
At 31 December 127331 H 1,673 34,082 102,726 25,171 148,200 - 311,852 1,284
Carrying amount at 31 December & 12 31 H 24,939 75,842 274,826 43,485 79,800 201,850 700,742 2,885
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS | & A & & ~

Office space

Cost
At 1 January
Currency translation differences
At 31 December

Less: Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January
Amortisation for the year
Currency translation differences
At 31 December

Carrying amount at 31 December

DAE

R
1A H
BmITEER
12831 7
A Bit#riA
1818
Eil|=!
BEMITEER
12831 7
#E12H31H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS | £ 7 ‘& 7~

Year 2023

Cost
At 1 January
Addition
Transfer
Currency translation differences
At 31 December

Less: Accumulated amortization
At 1 January
Amortisation for the year
Currency translation differences
At 31 December

Carrying amount at 31 December

Year 2022

Cost
At 1 January
Addition
Transfer
Currency translation differences
At 31 December

Less: Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January
Depreciation charge
Currency translation differences
At 31 December

Carrying amount at 31 December

20234
R
181 H
i
HRE
ik e
12831 H
Rt
1818
A
ik e
12831 H
#E12R31H

20224
R
1A H
#n
B
RMiTEER
12831 B
A BRIt
1818
P
RMiTEER
12831 7
#E 12831 H

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

uss$ KHR'm Us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
1,323,312 5,448 1,323,312 5,391
- (42) - 57
1,323,312 5,406 1,323,312 5,448
483,518 1,991 178,138 726
305,380 1,255 305,380 1,248
- (23) - 17
788,898 3,223 483,518 1,991
534,414 2,183 839,794 3,457
Computer Work in
software progress Total
B SR 14 HEIRE &it
uss uss uss KHR'm
(Note 3.3)
560,261 225,192 785,453 3,234
- 618,237 618,237 2,541
843,429 (843,429) - -
- - - (41)
1,403,690 - 1,403,690 5,734
39,090 - 39,090 161
105,874 - 105,874 435
- - - (4)
144,964 - 144,964 592
1,258,726 - 1,258,726 5,142
- 480,000 480,000 1,956
- 305,453 305,453 1,249
560,261 (560,261) - -
- - - 29
560,261 225,192 785,453 3,234
39,090 - 39,090 160
- - - 1
39,090 - 39,090 161
521,171 225,192 746,363 3,073
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17. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS | £ & /4 2

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
uss$ KHR'm uss$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)

Current account XF 397,628 1,624 420,368 1,731
Savings account prped 95,836,886 391,494 54,786,577 225,556
Fixed deposit EF 447,426 1,828 120,000 494
Total principal A& B 96,681,940 394,946 55,326,945 227,781
Accrued interest payables NiTFE 19,752 80 9,223 38
Total gross amounts K S ER 96,701,692 395,026 55,336,168 227,819

The total gross amounts above are analysed as follows: P _FME AT ITF R T :

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
uss KHR'm uss$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
a. By currency a. fjmatr:
US Dollar EV 96,677,136 394,926 55,188,533 227,211
Khmer Riel RM 24,556 100 147,635 608
96,701,692 395,026 55,336,168 227,819
b. By maturity b. Mk
Within 1 month [RIEION 96,245,565 393,163 55,214,680 227,319
> 1 to 3 months >1E®3H 223,123 911 - -
> 6 to 12 months >6 % 128 233,004 952 121,488 500
96,701,692 395,026 55,336,168 227,819
¢c. By residency c. ERST:
Resident BR 55,988,321 228,712 11,791,148 48,544
Non-resident EER 40,713,371 166,314 43,545,020 179,275
96,701,692 395,026 55,336,168 227,819
d. By relationship d. XR&L
Non-related parties EXREA 63,565,938 259,666 34,625,399 142,553
Related parties (Note 29.2) FRALE29.2) 33,135,754 135,360 20,710,769 85,266
96,701,692 395,026 55,336,168 227,819
e. By interest rate (per annum) e. FIESHr
Current account X7 0.00% 0.00%
Savings account AT 0.10% t0 0.20% 0.10% t0 0.20%
Fixed deposit EF 0.75% t0 4.50% 0.75% t0 4.50%
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18. LEASE LIABILITIES | 48 % 7 4&

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Contractual  Finance Carrying  Contractual Finance Carrying
cash flow charge amount cash flow charge amount
& FIA R T &H FE R T
e %A R nene %A R
uss$ uss Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ US$
Matured in EEHA:
Year 1 B1F 360,000 (32,996) 327,004 360,000 (58,069) 301,931
Year 2 B2 270,000 (7,046) 262,954 360,000 (32,996) 327,004
Year 3 E3F - - - 270,000 (7,046) 262,954
Year 4 FAF - - - - - -
Year 5 ES5F - - - - - -
After year 5 SERLE - - - - - -
630,000 (40,042) 589,958 990,000 (98,111) 891,889
In KHR'm equivalent A24F KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (3%£3.3) 2,574 (164) 2,410 4,076 (404) 3,672
2023 2022
uss$ KHR'm US$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
Movements of lease liabilities: FHERBFNTE:
At 1 January 1A1H 891,889 3,672 1,170,670 4,770
Interest expense FEEA 58,069 239 81,219 332
Interest paid RS (58,069) (239) (81,219) (332)
Principal portion of lease payments &R HE AR AS (301,931) (1,247) (278,781) (1,139)
Currency translation differences ThITEESn - 21) - 41
At 31 December 12831 H 589,958 2,410 891,889 3,672
Amounts recognised in profit or loss: 3 ARz
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAERNMNEZEH 58,069 239 81,219 332
Leases of short-term and low-value SSHAFEME S =S
assets 9,449 39 8,068 33
Total charge to profit or loss AR BE| 67,518 278 89,287 365
Amounts recognised in statement of FATEREF
cash flows
Total lease payments BN REER 360,000 1,480 360,000 1,471
Lease of short-term or low value SSHIREME S =S
assets 9,449 39 8,068 33
Total cash outflow for leases HEISRE 2| 369,449 1,519 368,068 1,504
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19. PROVISION FOR OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS | 4 ¢ #i #1413 Al i £

The movement of ECL allowance on off-balance sheet items (see Note 28.1) during the year were as follows:

FIME28.1) TS RIRKERIE R R T:

At 1 January 1TA1H
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 24) I+ Az (3E24)
At 31 December 12831 H

20. SHARE CAPITAL | £ ¥ &

1. Neak Oknha Ly Kunthai RN
2. Mr. Chen Cheng Ku R ST
3. Mr. Chen Ching Feng FRERZE 4
4. Mr. Huang Jui Cheng ERKSLE
5. Mr. Wei Chien Hua MRS E
6. Mr. Hsiao Ching Yang FOERESEAE
7. Mr. Hsieh Chin Mu WEAREE
8. Mr. Chien Kun Cheng BIREE A

The par value of the share is US$1,000 per share. All the
registered and issued shares of 100,000 have been fully paid
up. The registered capital in US$ was translated into KHR
using the historical exchange rate of US$1 equal to
KHR4,000.

@ B A

Regulatory reserves represented the variance between
impairment loss on financial instruments in accordance with
CIFRSs and the regulatory provision in accordance with the
requirement of the National Bank of Cambodia.

As at 31 December 2023, the Bank transferred from
retained earnings to regulatory reserves as follows:
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2023 2022
uUs$ KHR'm US$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
588 2 1,056 4
4,382 18 (468) (2)
4,970 20 588 2

31 December 2022 and 2023

Ownership No. of Amount Amount
% Shares S S8
FERR LB R uss KHR'm
(Note 3.3)

51% 51,000 51,000,000 204,000

7% 7,000 7,000,000 28,000

7% 7,000 7,000,000 28,000

7% 7,000 7,000,000 28,000

7% 7,000 7,000,000 28,000

7% 7,000 7,000,000 28,000

7% 7,000 7,000,000 28,000

7% 7,000 7,000,000 28,000

100% 100,000 100,000,000 400,000

REmENER 1,000 £, Z1THI100,000 fRE£H
BR. ZTEMBAZBHLLER 1 EXxTHHT
4,000 3R

FERERAZZRBCIFRSSHIEN €8 T EBER K
S5ZBRITERNEFINEZ BHNER.

#HE20235F12H31H, RITMASERFAENEZER
BERMT:
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Deposits Off-
with other Loans to Investment balance
banks customers securities sheet item Total
FHE B BEIESE E 2N =] &it
uss Us$ US$ Us$ Us$
At 31 December 2023 2023 %12 831 H
Allowance per NBC BRITIHR 1,131,128 344,057 105,244 39,763 1,620,192
Less: Allowances per CIFRS 9 A 3ZCIFRS 9 1112 681,593 214,608 131,134 4,970 1,032,305
Regulatory reserve (A) EEGRERER (A) 449,535 129,449 - 34,793 613,777
At 31 December 2022 2022 %£12 A31 @
Allowance per NBC BRITIHR 1,023,287 218,707 105,245 5,000 1,352,239
Less: Allowances per CIFRS 9 A 1ZCIFRS 9 1112 588,132 51,396 128,503 588 768,619
Regulatory reserve (B) EEREES (B) 435,155 167,311 - 4,412 606,878
Transfer from retained earnings to regulatory reserves (A - B) | MRS ERFEIE N EZEFRERR(A-B) 6,899
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3) | 424F KHR'm (3% 3.3) 28
22. INTEREST INCOME | #| £ ¥~
2023 2022
Uuss$ KHR'm US$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
Loans to customers B RNE N 2,187,658 8,991 1,020,012 4,169
Deposits with the NBC BFERRE 126,058 518 36,734 150
Deposits with other banks FhE 6,592,095 27,093 3,688,779 15,076
Investment securities BEIES 550,000 2,267 524,384 2,143
9,455,811 38,863 5,269,909 21,538
23. INTEREST EXPENSE | #] . % A
2023 2022
uss KHR'm Us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
Deposits from customers ERER 132,776 545 67,295 275
Lease liabilities FAE MR 58,069 239 81,219 332
190,845 784 148,514 607
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24. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT | 48 T. B 4% | B {4 17 %

Deposits with other banks
Loans to customers
Off-balance sheet items
Investment securities

25. PERSONNEL EXPENSES | # ‘& % A

Salaries and wages

Board's fees (Note 29.3)
Bonus and incentive expenses
Seniority payment

Allowances

Training

Others

26. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Rental and utilities expense

Other tax expense

Professional fee (*)

Marketing expense

License fees

Repairs and maintenance expense
Travel and entertainment expense
Communication expense

Office supplies expense
Registration expense

Other expense

(*) The professional fee includes audit fees payable to the auditor
amounting to US$38,500 inclusive of VAT for fiscal year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: US$34,100 inclusive of VAT).

2023 2022
USs$ KHR'm uss$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
FRE 93,461 384 116,528 476
B 163,212 671 45,919 188
FINTE 4,382 18 (468) (2)
BRI 2,631 1 128,503 525
263,686 1,084 290,482 1,187
2023 2022
Us$ KHR'm Us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
I% 995,165 4,090 884,175 3,614
B (3£29.3) 360,000 1,480 360,000 1,471
®e 152,460 626 108,866 445
Ti#R# 60,511 249 52,311 214
b=/l 21,098 87 23,790 97
il 837 3 12,665 52
Hih 66,719 274 63,247 258
1,656,790 6,809 1,505,054 6,151
A% 12 & A
2023 2022
Uus$ KHR'm uss KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
F&E. KBEE 186,931 768 64,982 266
Hithfiz 174,714 718 172,225 704
T ERA (%) 94,062 387 83,630 342
EHEH 81,479 335 38,407 157
Mg 65,842 271 65,168 266
1EIRHI 2R A 52,668 216 32,251 132
ZRMERER 41,833 172 12,633 52
AR 40,218 165 37,949 155
IYNEEIE 5 26,722 110 21,583 88
EMEA 1,230 5 2,243 9
Hith 3,179 13 64,078 261
768,878 3,160 595,149 2,432

34,100 =7t
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27. INCOME TAX | A 4% 4%,

In accordance with Cambodian Law on Taxation, the Bank #RIESRIHERIE, KNITEXEZZNBIULALR 20% ByE

has an obligation to pay corporate income tax of either the  grgranid I FTEFS, SIREE TR 1% BRI R
tax on income at the rate of 20% of taxable income or the gy vy prrams  prase 235,

minimum tax at 1% of annual turnover, whichever is higher.

27.1. Income tax expense | FT5#i 5% H

2023 2022
Us$ KHR'm Us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)

Current income tax LEFTISH 1,254,082 5,154 569,219 2,326
Under-provisioning for prior years BRI EE TSR 12,723 52 - -

1,266,805 5,206 569,219 2,326
Deferred tax BBIEFTER 9,371 39 (77,429) (316)

1,276,176 5,245 491,790 2,010

The reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the  A{TSLFRETERi B H SIREEMKRITENFERIEH
statutory tax rate of 20% to the income tax expense AE, TERAVEHI RN
shown in the statement of profit or loss is as follows:

2023 2022
% uss$ KHR'm % Us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
Profit before income tax | Bi AT 6,000,674 24,664 2,242,520 9,166
Income tax at statutory tax rate | 3L EFEK 20 1,200,135 4,933 20 448,504 1,833
Non-deductible expense | RNA[HEFTNHE 1 63,318 260 2 43,286 177
Under-provisioning for prior years | AE DL EE TS H: - 12,723 52 - - -
Income tax expense | Frg#t 2k f 21 1,276,176 5,245 22 491,790 2,010

27.2. Current income tax liabilities | Rz {5 Fr&#i
The movements of current income tax liabilities during the year were as follows: | K5t Er S EZIERFIRUA T

2023 2022
uss KHR'm us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
At 1 January 1A1H 522,896 2,153 169,991 693
Current income tax expense HEAFTER 1,254,082 5,154 569,219 2,326
Under-provisioning for prior years BRI FEEFRSH 12,723 52 - -
Income tax paid BANIESS ) (621,046) (2,552) (216,314) (884)
Currency translation differences BRHITEER - (33) - 18
At 31 December 12831 H 1,168,655 4,774 522,896 2,163
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27.3. Deferred tax asset, net | AT ERAFE, HE

Deferred tax assets BBIEFT SR A =
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFTER R
Net deferred tax assets BB AR, FE

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

The movements of net deferred tax assets during the year were followings: | B IE S TEE R IR T:

At 1 January 1H1H
Recognised in profit or loss T AR
Currency translation differences RHITEZER
At 31 December 12 H31 H

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the followings: | B ZEFr8F & =M AEIEAE T

Deferred tax assets BIEFBRHE =
Impairment losses VEREE S
Lease liabilities MERR
Unearned revenue BBIEA

Deferred tax liabilities BRI B R AR
Right-of-use assets ERREF=
Depreciation and amortisation HrIRFnHEH
Unrealised exchange gain/loss R HiRG

27.4. Tax contingency | BiS KB B

Taxes are calculated on the basis of current interpretation of
the tax regulations enacted as at reporting date. The
management periodically evaluates position taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subjected to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

However, these regulations are subject to periodic variation
and the ultimate determination of tax liabilities will be made
following inspection by the tax authorities. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
initially recorded, such differences will impact the taxes
liabilities and balances in the period in which the
determination is made.
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US$ KHR'm Us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
359,818 1,469 368,592 1,517
(209,784) (856) (209,187) (861)
150,034 613 159,405 656
2023 2022
US$ KHR'm Us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
159,405 656 81,976 334
(9,371) (39) 77,429 316
- (4) - 6
150,034 613 159,405 656

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

uUs$ KHR'm uss$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)

206,461 843 153,724 633
117,992 482 178,378 734
35,365 144 36,490 150
359,818 1,469 368,592 1,617
(106,884) (436) (167,960) (691)
(88,471) (361) (41,227) (170)
(14,429) (59) - -
(209,784) (856) (209,187) (861)
150,034 613 159,405 656

B HEUEIRYE IR & B AR RO A B TR T
BH. BEEEEHTEENF R REDTREIIG
, ERXMIERT, BERANBBCENZ ZIRE. £ES
HERT, RHERBEIRIT RN AR EI RIS
ERE

BT, AAMETRSENEE, RENPRXFHHE
BMENIRERHE. WRXLEEFNRENHRER
SRVIERNEHMAE, XFEFBZMIELRER
(6] 9 Rt s R 1R A0 R
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28. COMMITMENTS | & %
28.1. Credit commitments | {5 A &E

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

uss KHR'm Us$ KHR'm

(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)

Undrawn loan commitment RN 3,976,285 16,243 500,000 2,059
Less: ECL allowance (Note 19) AOBEREER (3E19) (4,970) (20) (588) 2)
Net amounts A 3,971,315 16,223 499,412 2,057

28.2. Lease commitments | fAER &G

The lease commitment from the short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets, which are exempted from lease

RTFRIAHERGHEREEENER~HERE
BRBEFREKR, AREERERE.

liability recognition, is not material so the lease
commitments are not disclosed.
28.3. Capital commitments | B4 F&iH

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Uss$ KHR'm Uss$ KHR'm

(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
Purchasing intangible assets T SE T B ™= 248,270 1,014 990,488 4,077
Purchasing property and equipment  T3ZEE % = 461,649 1,901
248,270 1,014 1,452,137 5,978

29. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS | # 4 A4 3 t1 Fo X &

The Bank is owned by a number of individual shareholders (Note 20). | &K{TEHZZHMARERIAE (3£20).

29.1. List of related parties | X & A& &

indirectly. The key management personnel of the Bank
include all Directors of the Bank, Chief Executive Officer,
and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Bank and
designated level in each department (including their
close family members).

Individual Shareholders, board of directors and key management fiZ:. EELMELBEEAR (G5
A personnel (including their close family members) BERZYIURERR) -

Related companies | All entities under the same common control from FIESEZANEE=EEERZES.
XELAH shareholders and board of directors.

Key management |The key managements are those persons having the X@EBEIEARZIEAENMNAREESR
personnel authority and responsibility for planning, directing and |gizfitl]. S AITEIRA
XEEBAR controlling the activities of the Bank either directly or AN(TABET A REIEAITLME

Blo
%%‘ /L,\QZEE\ EEIIJ/L,\QZIE&%:‘ZBI—J?EI
EFANAR (BEFEHIEERE)
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29.2. Balance with related parties | % & ARER

Key
Related Shareholders management

Companies and directors  personnel Total
KEAT BRAMEE XBEEAR &1t
us$ uss$ uss$ Us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3)
31 December 2023 2023 12 B31 H
Loans to customers (*) = PR (*) - - 410,282 410,282 1,676
Prepaid expense SNE-SE 30,736 - - 30,736 127
Security deposit Ee - 30,000 - 30,000 123
Deposits from customers (*] {Note 17) BERERM) (E17) 19,684,374 13,545,917 5,463 33,135,754 135,360
Lease liabilities (Note 18) FHEE R (3F18) - 589,958 - 589,958 2.410
Other liabilities Hithfa i 111,874 - - 111,874 457
31 December 2022 2022 £12 H31 H
Loans to customers (*) %= PR (*) - - 269,490 269,490 1,109
Prepaid expense SIANE-&E 13,785 - - 13,785 57
Security deposit Ee - 30,000 - 30,000 124
Deposits from customers (*) (Note 17) B RAFER) (F17) 45509 20,661,787 3,473 20,710,769 85,266
Lease liabilities (Note 18) &R (E18) - 891,889 - 891,889 3,672
(*) The loans and deposits to related parties are disclosed at principal with accrued interest amounts.
KXARARAMNERASRNITF S 2MIKE.
29.3. Transactions with related parties | X & A5
Key
Related Shareholders management
Companies and directors personnel Total
XEAR REANEE XBEEAR &t
uss$ uss uss$ Uss$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3)
Year 2023 2023 £
Interest incomes FIEUWA - - 21,016 21,016 87
Interest expense FEZEH 16,478 84,109 7 100,594 414
Remuneration [z - 360,000 562,687 922,687 3,792
Capital expenditure mrEx 7,321 - - 7,321 30
Insurance expenses REa 2R 24,334 - - 24,334 100
Other expense Hithze A 176,407 - - 176,407 725
Lease payment H & ST At - 360,000 - 360,000 1,480
Year 2022 2022 &£
Interest incomes FIEUA - - 8,429 8,429 34
Interest expense FEZFHEHA 92 100,141 27 100,260 410
Remuneration k= - 360,000 571,755 931,755 3,808
Capital expenditure B 23,838 - - 23,838 97
Insurance expenses 1RB&ERH 20,721 - - 20,721 85
Other expense HithZe 5,743 - - 5,743 23
Lease payment e - 360,000 - 360,000 1,471
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS | L4 & 4 % 34

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise:

EReRERD A LRALUASVFEUTHE:

Cash on hand EEI$
Deposits with the NBC EHRT
Deposits with other banks (*) FhE Nk (*)

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

uUs$ KHR'm US$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
4,141,288 16,917 1,007,938 4,150
28,954,354 118,279 7,204,887 29,663
10,542,641 43,067 7,244,947 29,827
43,638,283 178,263 15,457,772 63,640

(*) Included in the deposits with other banks is the term deposit with other banks, with original term up to 3 months

amounting to US$3,958,384 (2022: US$2,000,000).
(*) T W P EE T REMIRTREME -

[REABRE A3 A, €% USS$ 3,958,384 (20224 : US$ 2,000,000) o

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT | 4% A e % 32

The Bank embraces risk management as an integral part of
the Bank’s business, operations and decision-making
process. In ensuring that the Bank achieves optimum
returns whilst operating within a sound business
environment, the risk management teams are involved at
the early stage of the risk-taking process by providing
independent inputs, including relevant valuations, credit
evaluations, new product assessments and quantification of
capital requirements. These inputs enable the business
units to assess the risk-vs-reward of their propositions, thus
enabling risk to be priced appropriately in relation to the
return.

Generally, the objectives of the Bank's risk management
activities are to:

e identify the various risk exposures and capital
requirements;

e ensure risk-taking activities are consistent with risk
policies and the aggregated risk position are within the
risk appetite as approved by the Board; and

e create shareholders’ value through sound

management framework.

risk

The Bank holds the following financial assets and financial
liabilities, which measured at amortised cost:
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31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Us$ KHR'm Us$ KHR'm
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)

Financial assets SRE=
Cash on hand EENS 4,141,288 16,917 1,007,938 4,150
Deposits with the NBC FERRIT 28,954,354 118,279 7,204,887 29,663
Deposits with other banks ERE 112,431,199 459,281 101,740,623 418,866
Statutory deposits with the NBC EEFERIT 18,400,734 75,167 14,199,174 58,458
Loans to customers B PR 27,795,985 113,547 21,592,566 88,897
Investment securities BHIESH 10,393,250 42,456 10,395,881 42,800
Other assets Hithigz = 31,400 128 31,400 129
202,148,210 825,775 156,172,469 642,963

Financial liabilities SRR
Customer deposits ERAHFER 96,701,692 395,026 55,336,168 227,819
Other liabilities Hithfafi 274,885 1,124 143,797 592
Lease liabilities HERG 589,958 2,410 891,889 3,672
Provision for off-balance sheet items  FRINAEAE FHL 4,970 20 588 2
97,571,505 398,580 56,372,442 232,085

The Bank has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments: | &{TE IR T £/t T BRI X!
e Credit risk S X K& e Market risk Tz X & o Liquidity risk FxEhi4 R &

This note presents information about the Bank's exposure
to each of the above risks, the Bank’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Bank’s management of capital.

FEBRMNA T AT ERE—FR R OB 5
KTEHEMERNCH BIR. BERARRE, URAKT
MRAEERER.

Functional and governance structure ThEEFRIESE
The Bank's Board has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Bank’s risk management
framework. The Board has established the Compliance and
Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Bank’'s risk management
policies.

ATEEREARTREIMEEATHNGERER
s EFERRITEMENRERZRASR, NTEFEM
BERTHNEERRRK.

The Bank’s risk management policies are established to
identify and analyse the risks faced by the Bank, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. The risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Bank’s activities. The Bank, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims
to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.
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The Bank's Audit Committee oversees how management
monitors compliance with the Bank’s risk management
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by
the Bank. The Bank’s Audit Committee is assisted in its
oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes
both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported
to the Bank’s Audit Committee.

31.1. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any
of the Bank's customers or market counterparties fail to
fulfil their contractual obligations to the Bank. Credit risk
arises from deposits with the National Bank of Cambodia
and other banks, loans and advances, other financial assets,
and credit commitments and financial guarantee contract.
Credit exposure arises principally in lending activities.

Measurement

For loans to customers and credit commitments, the
estimation of credit exposure for risk management
purposes requires the use of models, as the exposure varies
with changes in market conditions, expected cash flows and
the passage of time. The assessment of credit risk of a
portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the
likelihood of default occurring, of the associated loss ratios
and of default correlations between counterparties. The
Bank measures credit risk using Probability of Default (PD),
Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD) for
the purposes of measuring ECL under CIFRS 9.

Deposits with the National Bank of Cambodia and other
banks are considered to be low credit risk. The credit ratings
of these assets are monitored for credit deterioration.
Measurement for impairment is limited to 12-month
expected credit loss. Other financial assets at amortised
cost are monitored for its credit rating deterioration, and the
measurement of impairment follows three-stage approach.

The lending activities are guided by the Bank's credit policy
to ensure that the overall objectives in the area of lending
are achieved, i.e., that the loan portfolio is strong and
healthy, and credit risks are well diversified. The credit policy
documents the lending policy, collateral policy, and credit
approval processes, including the Bank’s own internal credit
risk rating system, and procedures implemented to ensure
compliance with the NBC Guidelines.

74

ATENZRZBEEERERNMEEATREEERER
RMEFREST BN, FATHE RN EREXK
EEERNES M. AMTHITZRSNEEERAR
HRETHE. NERE X RS E IR S AR T E
MR ERE, BEERAATHEITIZERSRE.

31.1 ERAREK

ERANREZENRATHNEANZEFITHZHZYF AR
BEETTHEHMRITHNERX S MEX M FIRKAINE .
SN RE FERTHEMBITHER. MM
k. At SRR~ UL EARENSMBRAE .
SN ER B KIEE.

s

TR ARSAMERAE, HTREEEBNNER
R QAT B 2EAER, FANKRHMOBEETD
F. MRS RENNEMELmEL. THE
AEMNFEANEFTEA—DHEITTEALERNTTRENM.

HRMNIRKRURZ 52 F 2 BNENER M. ©T
ERELMER(PD) . HARFH D (EAD) FIELIR K

(LCD)skEEERXK, #EE CIFRS 9 THIRAAEM
K.

FERITHEMIRITHNERBOANZREANIE. XL
RENERITRZR SR, UMHEREL. BETE
XRTF12DANFHAEEIRKL. R MM RRAT
HENERMBFNERSRTLBERETEN, BMET

BEXA=ZMEE.

BHGENURTERBENES, MUHRIIERS
W BB, BIRRESBIMER, ERXKESS
B, EREGKICR T HREE. HIFRBEEMEEH
IR, SEATECHRBERARNKIFRRSE, U
R AHREFRITIE R M LHEMTERF

Fik | BOEFHWIRTT



Alpha Commercial Bank PLC | Annual Report

Year 2023 &

The Bank has established the Credit Policy which is
designed to govern the Bank’s risk undertaking activities.
Extension of credit is governed by credit programs that set
out the plan for a particular product or portfolio, including the
target market, terms and conditions, documentation and
procedures under which a credit product will be offered and
measured.

Credit risk ratings are reviewed and updated on an annual
basis, and in events of (i) change of loan terms and
conditions including extension; (ii) repayment irregularities
or delinquencies and (iii) adverse information relating to the
borrower or transaction.

Risk limit control and mitigation

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to
mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the
taking of security in the form of collateral for loans to
customers, which is common practice. The Bank
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral. The principal collateral types to secure
for loans to customers are:

e Hypothec/mortgages over residential and business
properties (land, buildings and other properties);
and

e (Cash in the form of fixed and margin deposits.
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(a) Concentration of risk (o) Kpegrh

The following table presents the Bank’'s maximum exposure to credit risk of on-balance T3RF|H 7 ARITEARE E(EAKIF R EMEEERNBERIT, NERNMEINE
sheet and off-balance sheet financial instruments, without taking into account of any gt TR AERANKIMGO. SFRNERE, BEARBHMOZSFENE2E.
collateral held or other credit enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposure NFRBERE, BAEARKEKOSETESRERTSTERN N SRUAS

to credit risk equals their carrying amount. For contingent liabilities, the maximum .. N - Wy W ) S e £ o 4 Y
exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Bank would have to pay if the NEBRASHM. NIRRT, SARIEANERE N RET =P HARRERR

obligations of the instruments issued are called upon. For credit commitments, the ELRE e

maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the undrawn credit facilities granted

to customers.

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Subject to collateral / credit enhancement Subject to collateral / credit enhancement
Maximum credit exposure PR TR/ SRR Maximum credit exposure MR R/ EAEE
BAERAXESEO Full &8 Partial E84> None I& BAEHAXESO Full €& Partial £84> None &
uss KHR'm % % % Us$ KHR'm % % %
(Note 3.3) (Note 3.3)
On-balance sheet item RATE:
Cash on hand EFIS 4,141,288 16,917 - - 100% 1,007,938 4,150 - - 100%
Deposits with the NBC ERRIT 28,954,354 118,279 - - 100% 7,204,887 29,663 - - 100%
Deposits with other banks FEk 112,431,199 459,281 - - 100% 101,740,623 418,866 - - 100%
Statutory deposits with the NBC EEFBRIT 18,400,734 75,167 - - 100% 14,199,174 58,458 - - 100%
Loans to customers BRENK 27,795,985 113,547 100% - - 21,592,566 88,897 100%
Investment securities KRS 10,393,250 42,456 - - 100% 10,395,881 42,800 - - 100%
Other assets Hith#g ™= 31,400 128 - - 100% 31,400 129 - - 100%
Off-balance sheet item RIMNE:
Undrawn loan commitment BESRRIE 3,976,285 16,243 100% - 500,000 2,059 100% -
206,124,495 842,018 15% - 85% 156,672,469 645,022 14% - 86%
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The above table represents a worst-case scenario of credit
risk exposure to the Bank, since collateral held and/or other

credit enhancement attached were not taken into account.
The exposures set out above are based on net carrying

amounts.

Deposits with other banks are held with local banks and
management has done proper risk assessment and believe

there will be no material loss from these local banks.

ERIRT RTRZ BEARREFRAORKERXE
MO . RS A UG LARK 4 351 7R o

FREVHIERTAMIRT, EEECHTEIAX
BIRfh, FHREZSAMIRITASEIERRK.

(b) Credit quality of financial asset b) €EREAFHNEHRE
Pursuant to the NBC guideline Prakas B7-017-344, the Bank #R#BHL{THYES Prakas No. B7-017-344, KiT4H%EE

have defined each credit grading according to its credit

quality of loans to customers as follows:

RAERRER PERNERREREUATEN:

Normal / Standard

IEE

Outstanding facility is repaid on timely manner and is
not in doubt for the future repayment. Repayment is
steadily made according with the contractual terms
and the facility does not exhibit any potential
weaknesses in repayment capability, business, cash
flow and financial position of the counterparty.

REEN AL G, RREFR
BEED). EFIERE R FARIRLHT
, BBRIEERAE . . WELRM
R HXNF M SRR EERFEAE
RIS .

Special mention

xE

A facility in this class is currently protected and may
not be past due but it exhibits potential weaknesses
that may adversely affect repayment of the
counterparty at the future date, if not corrected in a
timely manner, and close attention by the Bank.

Weaknesses include but are not limited to a declining
trend in the business operations of the counterparty or
in its financial position, and adverse economic and
market conditions that all might affect its profitability
and its future repayment capacity, or deteriorating
conditions on the collateral. This class has clearly its
own rational and should not be used as a compromise
between Normal and Substandard.

EXARFHEMRERE, TEFARE
H, (BMNRARA Y IEHZRIRITH
BYIRE, ARSI HYFREKN
= E R F 0 -

BREGERRTFZHXIFHLSE
ERMFSRANTREES, THHNE
FMWiEG, XL REEER
MEENFARRPERERE S, A&
FHOEL. INMFRERBRES
MEENE, FNENERSRENIT
Ko

Substandard

R

A facility ranked in this class exhibits noticeable
weaknesses and is not adequately protected by the
current business or financial position and repayment
capacity of the counterparty. In essence, the primary
source of repayment is not sufficient to service the
debt, not taking into account the income from
secondary sources such as the realisation of the
collateral.

HRAEX—XNERTARRHAE
MEER, FERAEXFZSNFHH
A 553 SRR MERE RE NI TR
Po MABLEH, EEMEFRIER
RPMRIERRSS, REERBRERIR
IR AL S ELLrT: D o

Doubtful
AT EE

A facility classified in this category exhibits more
severe weaknesses than one classified Substandard
such that its full collection on the basis of existing
facts, conditions or collateral value is highly
questionable or improbable. The prospect of loss is
high, even if the exact amount remains undetermined
for now.

Wi — KB ESR LT AR R
EHREREEFENSR, HIELER
BABAESL. FHIMHENENES
WERIFBESMENTTRERN. R
KMTHEMERE, REAFHNIRAE
BRI E -
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Loss A facility is classified as Loss when it is not collectable, M¥—&&=h LUk m, mBEMESIR
Rk and little or nothing can be done to recover the ZkJik 3z 533 AR B Y @ ok B23E

outstanding amount from the counterparty.

SER, ERMWAEAREK.

The credit quality of financial instruments other than loans, advances and financing are determined based on the ratings
of counterparties as defined equivalent ratings of other international rating agencies as defined below:

BRESFR. B E NI @R TAMNERREEBER 5N FIILE (E X A E M EPRFPRNEHNERITER) I E XN
T:

Sovereign

£

Refers to financial assets issued by the NBC
/government or guarantee by the NBC/government.

ERIT/ BN RITRRIT/BFEBRIE
RRFE o

Investment grade

BRER

Refers to the credit quality of the financial assets that
the issuer is able to meet payment obligation and
exposure bondholder to low credit risk of default.

BRITARBEITRENXSHNERE
FRERRE, EHEFFEATERE
RAELE AN

Non-investment
grade

Refers to low credit quality of the financial assets that
are highly exposed to default risk.

EERAREREN. RETEAXNK
REMEm R,

FREEFR

No rating Refers to financial assets which are currently not ¥5HFH = I FRER T HRIARER T
. . assigned with ratings due to unavailability of ratings jEmpydanis=,

REEATR 0 9 y 95 FEMSHA

models.

Credit impaired

ERAZ®R

Refers to the financial assets that are being impaired.

FEEEREN SR I,

Recognition of ECL | fifi{S A KHIIT 2

The Bank applies a three-stage approach based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition:
REVIRFIACRIERRENTk, NMTRA=ZMEGE:

Three-stage approach
=M
Recognition of ECL
HAE AR E

Criterion

Stage 1 Performing
E—Hr B ALK
12-month ECL
124 B TR {E Ak

No significant increase in credit risk

Stage 2 Under performing Stage 3 Nonperforming
LB AR BB AR
Lifetime ECL
BANGFEEITEE AR
Significant increased credit risk

Credit impaired assets

FEAEAMAMITE E AR T B EEm EAXEZZEm AR B ZEEm
Basic calculation of profit revenue On gross carrying amount On net carrying amount
WABIEARITTHE EKE DT E ZKESEITHE

The Bank measures ECL by using the general approach. The
general approach consists of segregating the customers
into three different stages according to the staging criteria
by assessing the credit risk. 12-month ECL will be computed
for stage 1, while lifetime ECL will be computed for stage 2
and stage 3 financial assets. At each reporting date, the
Bank will assess credit risk of each account as compared to
the risk level at origination date.

FITRA—RGEZEETHERRL. —RTEATR
MIHEERANE, RESHFERZEFI2A=PT
RMME. E—MBEHEI2ZPAMMERREL, ™
BMRMBE=MREME T E RN FEHTE
ERMRE. a8 MER, ATRHHEENKANE
FARE:, FHRESFZHBNRXRKFHTEEE.
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Below is a table showing a summary of credit risk status and period for ECL calculation by stages:

TREEARRRRFMTHERRE ST EARNEE:

DPD
Stage Credit risk status Grade Short term facility Long term facility Default indicator
B ER ERRKERR ER (1 year or less) (More than 1 year) HLE e
Bl EHES) KE (1EE)

1 No s-ighificant increase in Normal/Standard 0<DPD<14 0=<DPD<29 Performing
credit risk e B
ERRK T BEHN =

2 Significant increased credit | Special mention 15<DPD <30 30=<DPD <89 .
risk 3x \Under\performmg
FEARK B ALK

3 Credit impaired assets Substandard 31 <DPD <60 90=<DPD <179
EREERBER™ KK

Doubtful 61 <DPD <90 180 < DPD < 359 Nonperforming
A EE TRER

Loss DPD = 91 DPD = 360

LS

The Bank will use the day past due (“DPD") information and
the NBC's classification for staging criteria. Also, the Bank
will incorporate credit scoring or more forward-looking
elements in the future when information is more readily
available. Upon the implementation of credit scoring
system, if the risk level drops by two or more notches as
compared to the risk level at origination, the accounts have
to be classified under stage 2.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Bank incorporates forward-looking information into both
the assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument
has increased significantly since its initial recognition and
the measurement of ECL.

External information considered includes economic data and
forecasts published by governmental bodies and monetary
authorities in the countries where the Bank operates,
supranational organisations such as the International
Monetary Fund, and selected private-sector and academic
forecasters.

The Bank has identified and documented key drivers of
credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial
instruments in accordance with each country and, using an
analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships
between macro-economic variables and credit risk and
credit losses.

The following table shows an analysis of the credit exposure
by stages, together with the ECL allowance:
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AT EAERRE( “DPD” )EEMNBCHI K IE
AR, 1SN, RITRESERANERZREN
PANERANLHEANEMENER. KTERTSH
ER, MRRNEFRETBEREER TRERREUL,
T A Z50RE I P 93 2R3 56 — v B o

MARTIEIERER

FITHRTEMRE S PHAXN—ITANEAREK B &Y
HIALLR S B 18 0 A A AT T E AR R A9 T

BHo

£ RHSNRE B BIEAITIT L5 BT E A BUR AL A
KM RE. ErmESEARA(MA)EBEREALUR
EERFAE B IMZ AT & 500 L55F BRI
Mo

AR|EEEBRABEFICRTEMNERMTRAASNE
BREMEFRANERRHER, FBEIXNHEH
BN, T EZUEFRESERNEEER
KRZBHIKRF -

S ERAE A RBE A AT AR = IR & FI R T
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31 December 2023 31 December 2022
ANALYSIS OF CREDIT QUALITY ERRES Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$ US$ Us$ Us$ USs$
Deposits with other banks: FREL:
Sovereign FW
Investment grade BERE
Non-investment grade EREER 66,411 66,411 11,514 11,514
No rating REERTER 113,046,381 113,046,381 | 102,317,241 102,317,241
Credit impaired BEES
Gross carrying amount T T S 113,112,792 113,112,792 | 102,328,755 102,328,755
Loss allowance (ECL) SELEEIEERES (681,593) (681,593) (588,132) (588,132)
Net carrying amount (US$) M A (USY) 112,431,199 112,431,199 | 101,740,623 101,740,623
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3) ALF KHR’ m (3 3.3) 459,281 459,281 418,866 418,866
Loans to customers: Z AR
Standard % 25,004,408 25,004,408 | 21,643,962 21,643,962
Special mention *E 3,006,185 3,006,185
Substandard R
Doubtful T &%
Loss RN
Gross carrying amount MK S 25,004,408 3,006,185 28,010,593 21,643,962 21,643,962
Loss allowance (ECL) TREA(E AR (63,322) (151,286) (214,608) (51,396) (51,396)
Net carrying amount (US$) MK 2 1E (USS) 24,941,086 2,854,899  27,795985| 21,592,566 21,592,566
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3) AHFKHR m (GE3.3) 101,884 11,662 113,547 88,897 88,897
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ANALYSIS OF CREDIT QUALITY

Investment securities
Sovereign
Investment grade
Non-investment grade
No rating
Credit impaired
Gross carrying amount
Loss allowance (ECL)
Net carrying amount (US$)
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3)

Off-balance sheet items
Standard
Special mention
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss
Gross carrying amount
Loss allowance (ECL)
Net carrying amount (US$)
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3)

ERRES

BRI

ER

RER

FREFR

RBERTR

(ELiEEA

K T A

TREA(E AR R
Rk $E (USS)
HYFKHR’ m (£ 3.3)

RINRH

EE

xE

KRR

AJ5E

EaES

it

TREA(E AR R
K $4E (USS)
HYFKHR’ m (£3.3)

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

uss$ Us$ Us$ Us$ USs$ uss$ uss$ uSs$
10,524,384 10,524,384 10,524,384 10,524,384
10,524,384 10,524,384 10,524,384 - - 10,524,384
(131,134) (131,134) (128,503) (128,503)
10,393,250 10,393,250 10,395,881 - - 10,395,881
42,456 42,456 42,800 - - 42,800
3,976,285 3,976,285 500,000 500,000
3,976,285 3,976,285 500,000 - - 500,000
(4,970 (4,970 (588) (588)
3,971,315 3,971,315 499,412 - - 499,412
16,223 16,223 2,056 - - 2,056
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(c) Amounts arising from ECL | Fii{E AR ELF=E N ST

The following table shows reconciliation from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowance of:

ERMKESHIZEMRRAN LTI RA T :

2023 2022
ANALYSIS OF ECL MOVEMENT WERE BRI TR 247 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ uss
Deposits with other banks: FHEL:
At 1 January 1A 1H 588,132 - - 588,132 471,604 - - 471,604
Derecognition during the year 15 (583,709) - - (583,709) (455,445) - - (455,445)
Remeasurement of loss allowance EFitE 1,320 - - 1,320 (11,741) - - (11,741)
New financial assets originated PEENERE 675,850 - - 675,850 583,714 - - 583,714
At 31 December (US$) 12 31 B (US§) 681,593 - - 681,593 588,132 - - 588,132
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3) HLETF KHR’ m (X 3.3) 2784 - - 2784 2421 - - 2,421
Loans to customers: L T
At 1 January 1R1H 51,396 - - 51,396 5477 - - 5,477
Derecognition during the year 1z (20,337 - - (20,337)
Transfer between stage Bt ER %L 4R (5,882) - 5,882 -
Remeasurement of loss allowance BHITE (268) - 145,404 145,136 11,456 - - 11,456
New financial assets originated PN ERF 38,413 - - 38,413 34,463 - - 34,463
At 31 December (US$) 12 31 B (US§) 63,322 - 151,286 214,608 51,396 - - 51,396
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3) HAHFKHR' m (5£3.3) 259 - 618 877 212 - - 212

82



Alpha Commercial Bank PLC | Annual Report Year 2023 £ FIR | BEFWRIT

2023 2022
ANALYSIS OF ECL MOVEMENT TSR RRRZ RN T Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
us$ us$ us$ us$ Us$ Us$ us$ us$
Investment securities R HIES
At 1 January 1TA1H 128,503 - - 128,503
Remeasurement of loss allowance EFitE 2,631 - - 2,631 - - - -
New financial assets originated FENT A - - - - 128,503 - - 128,503
At 31 December (US$) 12 531 A (Us§) 131,134 - - 131,134 128,503 - - 128,503
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3) HYEF KHR’ m (3£ 3.3) 536 - - 536 529 - - 529
Off balance sheet items FINTE
At 1 January TB1H 588 - - 588 1,056 - - 1,056
Remeasurement of loss allowance EFiTE (588) - - (588) (468) - - (468)
New financial assets originated FEENFERmER 4,970 - - 4,970 - - - -
At 31 December (US$) 12 A31 H (Us§) 4,970 - - 4,970 588 - - 588
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3) AHAEFKHR’ m (G£3.3) 20 - - 20 2 - - 2
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31.2. Market risk

The Bank takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flow of a financial instrument, will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk arises from open positions in interest rates, currency and equity products, all
of which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the level
of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices.

The Bank does not use derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange
contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risk exposure.

(a) Price risk

The Bank is not exposed to a securities price risk because it does not have any investment
held and classified on the statement of financial position at fair value.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the
levels of interest rate and shifts in the composition of the assets and liabilities. Interest
rate risk is managed through close monitoring of returns on investment, market pricing
and cost of funds. The potential reduction in net interest income from an unfavourable
interest rate movement is regularly monitored against the risk tolerance limits set.

The table below summarises the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk including the Bank's
interest rate gap position. The table indicates the periods in which the financial
instruments reprice or mature, whichever is earlier. The instruments are mature in short-
term and the interest rates are fixed and so they are subject to low interest rate risk.
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LB
(b) FIR R

FIR X e 215 A T FIZRKF LR == R HHE R Z T S EH 2 S M AR
o FIXRX e ZBIEBYENRELDR. TIHENMBSHARER. RIEFIR
ERNRAZIRE, EH MR FIFRE) ] RESBUSFI BN B RIIE S

TREETARTHFARNEHO, SEATHMRRORL. ZRETEMITA
EMENXIENERE, UAREEE. XLETAZRPEHN, FXEEEN
, BEIEEATmE R R R M .



Alpha Commercial Bank PLC | Annual Report Year 2023 £ FIR | BEFWRIT

Within >1t03 >3t06 >6to 12 >1tob >5b Non-interest
1 month months months months years years bearing Total
Us$ Uss US$ US$ Uss$ uss$ uss$ uss
31 December 2023 2023 %12 A31 H

Financial assets SREFE
Cash on hand EFEIe - - - - - - 4,141,288 4,141,288
Deposits with the NBC FERRIT - - - - - - 28,954,354 28,954,354
Deposits with other banks HERE L 8,628,607 19,842,078 26,516,009 57,351,061 - - 93,444 112,431,199
Statutory deposits with the NBC AT - - - - - 10,000,000 8,400,734 18,400,734
Loans to customers Y SN 231,382 233,134 412,297 1,304,488 13,071,099 12,543,585 - 27,795,985
Investment securities BRIES 517,850 - - - 9,875,400 - - 10,393,250
Other assets HitbE = - - - - - - 31,400 31,400
9,377,839 20,075,212 26,928,306 58,655,549 22,946,499 22,543,585 41,621,220 202,148,210

Financial liabilities ot VAR
Deposits from customers B RER 95,847,936 223,123 - 233,005 - - 397,628 96,701,692
Other liabilities Hithfafs ; - - - - - 274,885 274,885
Lease liabilities MERR 26,264 53,057 80,920 166,763 262,954 - - 589,958
Provision for off-balance sheet items  FR4NEEIREL AR 4,970 - - - - - - 4,970
95,879,170 276,180 80,920 399,768 262,954 - 672,513 97,571,505
Interest maturity gap (US$) FIERHO (USS) (86,501,331) 19,799,032 26,847,386 58,255,781 22,683,545 22,543,585 40,948,707 104,576,705
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3) 214 F KHR'm (3 3.3) (353,358) 80,879 109,672 237,975 92,662 92,091 167,274 427,195
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Within >1t03 >3t06 >6 to 12 >1tob >5 Non-interest
1 month months months months years years bearing Total
Us$ US$ Us$ Us$ US$ US$ US$ Us$
31 December 2022 2022 %12 H31 H

Financial assets SRlER=E
Cash on hand EEN$ - - - - - - 1,007,938 1,007,938
Deposits with the NBC FERRT - - - - - - 7,204,887 7,204,887
Deposits with other banks FHE L 2,432,403 12,388,383 41,044,824 41,067,881 - - 4,807,132 101,740,623
Statutory deposits with the NBC SEEFRRIT - - - - - 10,000,000 4,199,174 14,199,174
Loans to customers Y SN 270,019 465,826 777,867 1,677,222 8,608,897 9,792,735 - 21,592,566
Investment securities BRIES 517,981 - - - 9,877,900 - - 10,395,881
Other assets HitbBz = - - - - - - 31,400 31,400
3,220,403 12,854,209 41,822,691 42,745,103 18,486,797 19,792,735 17,250,531 156,172,469

Financial liabilities o VAR
Deposits from customers EPRER 54,795,800 - - 120,000 - - 420,368 55,336,168
Other liabilities Hibfafi - - - - - - 143,797 143,797
Lease liabilities HERR 24,251 48,939 74,715 153,976 589,958 - - 891,889
Provision for off-balance sheet items  FR4NEEIRE AR 588 - - - - . . 588
54,820,639 48,939 74,715 273,976 589,958 - 564,165 56,372,442
Interest maturity gap (US$) FIRFHAGRO (USS) (51,600,236) 12,805,220 41,747,976 42,471,127 17,896,839 19,792,735 16,686,366 99,800,027
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3) ZHF KHR'm (3£ 3.3) (212,438) 52,719 171,876 174,854 73,681 81,487 68,698 410,877

The Bank did not have variable rate instruments. Therefore, no cash flow sensitivity analysis was prepared or presented.
ATEBAUTNETE - At - RAERFRENE RGN EIT -
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(c) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments wiill
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Bank’s policy is to maintain

(c) ST RS

foreign currency exposure within acceptable limits and within existing regulatory

guidelines.

The table below summarises the Bank’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk.
Included in the table are and Bank's financial instruments at their carrying amounts by

currency in US$ equivalent.

Financial assets
Cash on hand
Deposits with the NBC
Deposits with other banks
Statutory deposits with the NBC
Loans to customers
Investment securities
Other assets

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers
Other liabilities
Lease liabilities
Provision for off-balance sheet items

Net position gap (US$)
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3)

SRE
EFIE
FRRIT
L E
EEFRIT
B REER
RAEIUZ
Hfth#r=

SRR
&R
Hftha s
Il
TINRER KA S

Berimg 0 %8 (USS)
AYFKHR’ m (5%3.3)

TRBEEMIIRT A
AEFERETEEETHNEMTI R,

[

T

US$ equivalents as at 31 December 2023

SSENBE ISR TRIMERSNDLREMM A ERENNE. FTHBEKE
RINCRRERFETEZNREAFHFSIEMNEEREN.

SSOCRERZMAI N M o RABEAITHEKE

US$ equivalents as at 31 December 2022

usD KHR Total usD KHR Total
3,899,716 241,572 4,141,288 800,160 207,778 1,007,938
27,548,577 1,405,777 28,954,354 6,767,520 437,367 7,204,887
109,098,486 3,332,713 112,431,199 99,095,735 2,644,888 101,740,623
18,200,000 200,734 18,400,734 14,000,000 199,174 14,199,174
24,270,830 3,625,165 27,795,985 18,065,631 3,526,935 21,592,566
10,393,250 - 10,393,250 10,395,881 - 10,395,881
31,400 - 31,400 31,400 - 31,400
193,442,259 8,705,951 202,148,210 149,156,327 7,016,142 156,172,469
96,677,136 24,556 96,701,692 55,188,634 147,634 55,336,168
274,885 - 274,885 143,797 - 143,797
589,958 - 589,958 891,889 - 891,889
4,970 4,970 588 - 588
97,546,949 24,556 97,571,505 56,224,808 147,634 56,372,442
95,895,310 8,681,395 104,576,705 92,931,519 6,868,508 99,800,027
391,732 35,463 427,195 382,598 28,279 410,877
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Sensitivity analysis UMD T

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Bank had significant exposure at T 3R%5;R 7 AT EEHFINCKEE O B R REME DT ZOITEETRILX
the end of the reported periods on its net position gap. The analysis calculates the effect & IBETAE I E IR TR LRI AR BPAONENT. REABER, KT
of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate on the profit or loss and other MASTHEETERS, AEASWEEDS T BERNEHEEAITEINT A 4M

component of equity. A; the Bank does not ad_apt currency hedge as of current reporting NRHETRN A S I R 2R A B EL 2R R 40 O 2 S
date, there would be no impact on the change in fair value of currency swaps and forward

foreign exchange contracts used as cash flow hedges; thus impact on other component
of equity is nil.

A negative amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in the Bank's profit, while f#iFRRAJaE R/ DARITEFE, FEER A MAIT 2R
a positive amount reflects a net potential increase.

2023 2022
Increase by 1% Decrease by 1% Increase by 1% Decrease by 1%
#h1% R1% #101% A%
For KHR Currency: Possible outcome in US$ | 3R: TJRERIZESR (3£7T)
Impact on net profit after tax | g4 FI5H (69,110) 70,314 (53,922) 55,537
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31.3. Liquidity risk 31.3. FEhHE XK e

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Bank being unable to meet its payment obligations FEEIMXBEIEATEHSHAGRISEN T EBITEEMRENSIMNXESE, UEE
associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they =4 ¥HEEIR T £ B ELHNK. KTERSELHFERLSHEIBEAKK,

are withdrawn. The Bank is not exposed to significant risk in respect of liquidity as the KA EEEREANSHAE, MASRTINEHLES. SRAETESx M
Bank does not incur significant financial liability and there is still cash surplus maintained EZ5 . R R E AT A RN R
FAS NMIT TR R 2L INA N E Y

in the banks. Financial liabilities are mainly deposits from customers, accruals and other
payables which are short-term in nature.

The Bank evaluates its ability to meet its obligations on an ongoing basis. The Bank #A{TIFEIEEREBITX SN . RTREFENRMERKESIE, BHEES%
maintains prudent liquidity risk management, i.e. sufficient cash and cash equivalents to  gIMEL ML ERYLHE R EZELERMEBATHERK,
meet working capital requirements and to meet capital expenditure requirements.

The table below summarises the Bank's assets and liabilities based on remaining THRIBEFRSABREERE T ATHESMMALE. XEREZHAGENTTENES
contractual maturities. The expected cash flows of these assets and liabilities could vary szt 5% BRMABRAZR. G, BARGERERE S IPEREE S EIIZE

significantly from what is shown in the table. For example, deposits from customers are . BIEREAE ARG EEANRRERE, B BRI SR f
not all expected to be withdrawn immediately. Analysis of the assets and liabilities of the T AT
| D1 .

Bank by relevant maturity based on the remaining year at the reporting date to the
contractual or estimated maturity dates is as follow:
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31 December 2023
Financial assets
Cash on hand
Deposits with the NBC
Deposits with other Banks
Loans to customers
Investment securities
Other assets

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers
Other liabilities
Lease liabilities

Liquidity gap (US$)
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3)

202312831 H
SRFE
P&
FRRAT
e
= REN
REIUS
Hth# =

e
B RER
Hthta iz
HERMHR

Fahteream (USS)
H5F KHR'm (3% 3.3)

Carrying Gross nominal Within 1 >11t03 >31t06 >6 10 12 >1t05b
amount inflow/ (outflow) month months months months years > b years
us$ us$ Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$ US$
4,141,288 4,141,288 4,141,288 - - - - -
28,954,354 28,954,354 | 28,954,354 - - - - -
112,431,199 117,481,475 8,734,258 20,127,967 27,404,000 61,215,250 - -
27,795,985 39,153,198 320,570 605,340 965,856 2,413,586 19,372,869 15,474,977
10,393,250 11,100,000 550,000 - - - 10,550,000 -
31,400 31,400 - - - - 31,400 -
183,747,476 200,861,715| 42,700,470 20,733,307 28,369,856 63,628,836 29,954,269 15,474,977
(96,701,692) (96,712,603) | (96,245,565) (225,489) - (241,549) - -
(274,885) (274,885) (274,885) - - - - -
(589,958) (630,000) (30,000) (60,000) (90,000) (180,000) (270,000) -
(97,566,535) (97,617,488) | (96,550,450) (285,489) (90,000) (421,549) (270,000) -
86,180,941 103,244,227 | (53,849,980) 20,447,818 28,279,856 63,207,287 29,684,269 15,474,977
352,049 421,752 (219,977) 83,529 115,523 258,202 121,260 63,215
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31 December 2022
Financial assets
Cash on hand
Deposits with the NBC
Deposits with other Banks
Loans to customers
Investment securities
Other assets

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers
Other liabilities
Lease liabilities

Liquidity gap (US$)
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3)

202212831 H

SR
EFIEd
FARIT
A
E PR
REIUS
Hth# =

SRR
ZRER
Hthta
BT R

FEpEFEm (USS)
HYF KHR'm (£ 3.3)

Year 2023 £ FiR | BEFWIRIT
Carrying Gross nominal Within 1 >11t03 >3106 >6 10 12 >1tob
amount inflow/ (outflow) month months months months years > 5 years
uss$ uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ US$
1,007,938 1,007,938 1,007,938 - - - - -
7,204,887 7,204,887 7,204,887 - - - - -
101,740,623 105,621,914 7,247,402 12,508,000 42,051,740 43,814,773 - -
21,592,566 29,420,687 357,300 745,754 1,185,423 2,442,714 12,862,713 11,826,783
10,395,881 11,650,000 550,000 - - - 11,100,000 -
31,400 31,400 31,400 - - - - -
141,973,295 154,936,826 | 16,398,927 13,253,754 43,237,163 46,257,487 23,962,713 11,826,783
(55,336,168) (65,341,568) | (65,216,168) - - (125,400) - -
(143,797) (143,797) (143,797) - - - - -
(891,889) (990,000) (30,000) (60,000) (90,000) (180,000) (630,000) -
(56,371,854) (56,475,365) | (55,389,965) (60,000) (90,000) (305,400) (630,000) -
85,601,441 98,461,461 | (38,991,038) 13,193,754 43,147,163 45,952,087 23,332,713 11,826,783
352,421 405,366 (160,526) 54,319 177,637 189,185 96,061 48,691
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31.4. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Bank did not have financial instruments measured at fair
value.

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments comprise financial assets, financial
liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in
its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
Bank has access at that date. The information presented
herein represents the estimates of fair values as at the
financial position date.

Quoted and observable market prices, where available, are
used as the measure of fair values of the financial
instruments. Where such quoted and observable market
prices are not available, fair values are estimated based on
a range of methodologies and assumptions regarding risk
characteristics of various financial instruments, discount
rates, estimates of future cash flows and other factors.

Fair value information for non-financial assets and liabilities
are excluded as they do not fall within the scope of CIFRS
7, Financial Instruments Disclosures which requires the fair
value information to be disclosed. These include investment
in subsidiaries and property and equipment.

The fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments such as
cash and short-term funds, balances with the NBC, balances
with other banks, deposits from banks and other financial
institutions, other assets, other liabilities and short-term
borrowings are not materially sensitive to shifts in market
profit rate because of the limited term to maturity of these
instruments. As such, the carrying value of these financial
assets and liabilities at financial position date approximate
their fair values.

As at the reporting date, the fair values of financial
instruments of the Bank approximate their carrying
amounts.

The estimated fair values are based on the following
methodologies and assumptions:
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Deposits with the NBC and other banks

The carrying amounts of deposits with National Bank of
Cambodia and other banks approximate their fair values,
since these accounts consist mostly of current, savings and
short-term deposits.

Loans to customers

For fixed rate loans with remaining period to maturity of less
than one vyear, the carrying amounts are generally
reasonable estimates of their fair values.

For fixed rate loans with remaining period to maturity of one
year and above, fair values are estimated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows using a current lending rate as
the prevailing market rates of loans with similar credit risks
and maturities have been assessed as insignificantly
different to the contractual lending rates. As a result, the fair
value of non-current loans to customers is approximate to
their carrying value as reporting date.

Deposits from banks and non-bank customers

The fair value of deposits from banks and non-bank
customers with maturities of less than one vyear
approximate their carrying amount due to the relatively short
maturity of these instruments. The fair value of deposits
from banks and non-bank customers with remaining
maturities of more than one year are expected to
approximate their carrying amount due to the Bank offered
similar interest rate of the instrument with similar maturities
and terms.

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturities, which includes non-interest bearing deposits,
deposits payable on demand is the amount payable at the
reporting date.

Other financial assets and other financial liabilities

The carrying amounts of other financial assets and other
financial liabilities are assumed to approximate their fair
values as these items are not materially sensitive to the shift
in market interest rates and have a short duration.
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32. Capital management 32. %3
32.1. Regulatory capital 32.1. BEFE

The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the balance
sheet, are:

e To comply with the capital requirements set by the
NBC;

e To safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

e To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of the business.

The NBC requires all licensed commercial banks to (i) fulfil
the minimum capital requirements, and (ii) comply with
solvency, liquidity and other requirements.

On 22 February 2018, the NBC issued a Prakas on Capital
Buffer in Banking and Financial Institutions. According to
Article 22 of this Prakas, the institution shall comply with the
provisions related to the capital conservation buffer at least
50% of the conservation buffer by 1 January 2019 and fully
comply by 1 January 2020.

On 7 March 2018, the NBC issued a circular on the
implementation of Prakas on Capital Buffer in Banking and
Financial Institutions, which determines the countercyclical
capital buffer at a level of 0% until a new announcement is
released.

Subsequently, on 9 January 2023, the NBC issued a circular
on the implementation of Prakas on Capital Buffer in
Banking and Financial Institutions, which the institution shall
rebuild the capital conservation buffer ratio by 1.25% and
2.5% by 30 June 2023 and 31 December 2023, respectively.
For the countercyclical capital buffer, the institution shall
keep at level of 0%.

On 23 November 2023, the NBC issued new Letter No. B7-
023-2621 allowing Banking and Financial Institutions to
continue rebuild the capital conservation buffer ratio by
1.25% until 31 December 2024.
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The below table summarises the composition of the regulatory capital:

BT RN

Tier 1 capital
Share capital
Add: Audited net profit for the last financial year
Add: Retained earnings/(Less: accumulated losses)
Less: Intangible assets
Less: Loans to related parties - gross
Total Tier 1 capital
Tier 2 complementary capital
General provision

Total Tier 2 capital

Total regulatory capital
In KHR'm equivalent (Note 3.3)

32.2. Capital allocation

The allocation of capital between specific operations and
activities is, to a large extent, driven by optimisation of the
return achieved on the capital allocated. The amount of

—RER
SNl
hn: &FE
m: RS EFE
B TR
AR RAN - IKEBE
—REFEI

“RBEX
B —RIAR S
“REFRE

BEBE®
HLF KHR'm (5£3.3)

322. BAERE

capital allocated to each operation or activity is based

primarily upon the regulatory capital.

95

31 December

2023 2022

Us$ US$
100,000,000 100,000,000
4,724,498 1,750,730
1,188,343 (5692,254)
(1,258,726) (746,363)
(410,282) (269,490)
104,243,833 100,142,623
1,529,421 1,352,239
1,529,421 1,352,239
105,773,254 101,494,862
432,084 417,855
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